12th Fleor, The Rub
S.R. BATL ’BOi & CO. E.E.P 29d53n:g£ti BaepaltJ h/\{arg

D (West)
Chartered Accountants M?.H‘I’?Eai 3 2'50 028, india

Tel : +91 22 6819 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Indian Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financia] statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
(the “Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, its profit including other comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the [nd AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
andit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2019. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying Ind AS financial statements.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Transition to Ind AS accounting framework
{as described in note 54 of the Ind AS financial statements)

In accordance with the roadmap for
implementation of Ind AS for non-banking
financial companies, as announced by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company
has adopted Ind AS from April 1, 2018 with
an effective date of April 1, 2017 for such
transition. For periods up to and including
the year ended March 31, 2018, the
Company had prepared and presented its
financial statements in accordance with the
erstwhile generally accepted accounting
principles in India (Indian GAAP). In order
to give effect of the transition to Ind AS
these financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2019, fogether with the
comparative financial information for the
previous year ended March 31, 2018 and the
transition date balance sheet as at April 1,
2017 have been prepared under Ind AS.

The transition has involved significant
change in the Company’s policies and
~processes relating to financial reporting,

| including generation of reliable and
supportable information. Further, the
management has exercised significant

Jjudgement for giving an appropriate effect of
principles of First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS 101), as at

of the new accounting framework on certain
accounting and disclosure requirements
prescribed under extant Reserve Bank of
India (‘RBI’) directions. Further, certain
provision of Financial Instruments (Ind AS
109} are different as compared to RBI
guidelines.

transition date and to determine the impact | Ind AS.

We read the Ind AS impact assessment performed by
the management to identify areas impacted on
account of Ind AS transition,

We understeod the financial statement closure
process (including disclosures in notes to accounts)
and the additional controls established by the
Company for transition to Ind AS. We have tested the
design and operating effectiveness of key controls for
processes identified by the Company for impact
assessment.

We understood the exemption availed by the
management in applying the first-time adoption
principles of Ind AS 101,

We understood thé changes made by the Company in
presentation and disclosures under the new
accounting framework as compared to disclosure
requirements under extant RBI Directions.

We understood the changes made to the accounting
policies in light of the requirements of the new
framework.

We performed test of details on the accounting
adjustments posted as at the transition date and in
respect of the previous year to convert the financial
information reported under erstwhile Indian GAAP to

We assessed the disclosures included in the Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 101, with respect to the
previous periods presented.

(b) Impairment of financial assets (expected credit losses)
(as described in note 3.6 of the Ind AS financial statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to
recognise impairment allowance towards its
financial assets (designated at amortised cost
and fair value through other comprehensive
income) using the expected credit loss (ECL)

approach. Such ECI, allowance is required

Our audit procedures included understanding the
Company’s accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets and assessing their compliance with
the respect to Ind AS 109.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

to be measured considering the guiding
-] principles mentioned in the standard.

Applying such principles and other
requirements of the standard with respect to
such allowance involves use of significant
degree of judgement by the Company
especially with respect to the following
aspects:

¢ Grouping of borrowers on the basis of
homogeneity given the variety of
products;

e Staging of loans and estimation of
behavioral life;

e Determining management overlay for
macro-economic factors impacting the
credit quality of receivables;

o Estimation of expected

~historical observations

s Estimation of losses for loan products
with no/ minimal historical defaults.

loss  from

Considering the significance of such
allowance to the overall financial statements
and the degree of management’s judgment,
any error or misstatement in such estimate
may give rise to a material misstatement of
the Ind AS financial statements or omission
of any disclosure required by the standards.
Therefore, it is considered as a key audit
matter.

We understood (he process of ECL estimation and
tested the design and operating effectiveness of key
controls around data extraction and validation.

» We tested the controls for staging of loans based
on their past-due status. We also reviewed a
sample of performing (stage 1 and stage 2) loans
to assess whether any loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under stage 2 or 3
as applicable. We selected a sample (based on
quantitative thresholds) of certain borrowers. We
obtained the Company’s assessment of the
recoverability of these exposures and assessed
individual impairment provisions, or lack of, were
appropriate. This included the following
procedures:

Assessed the probability weighting assigned to each

scenario

Assessed external collateral valuer’s credentials and

compared external valuations to values used in the

Company’s impairment assessments.

We tested the ECL. model and computation for its:
Model/ Methodology used for types of loans
including;

¢ Management’s grouping of borrowers on
basis of types of loans and customer
segments with different risk characteristics.

e Staging of loans based on their past-due
status.

e Understood management overlays for
macro-cconoric factors considering
reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information for various loan products.

¢ Various assumptions for calculation of
expected loss viz. probability of default, loss
given defaults, exposure at defaulf,
discounting  factors applied by the
management along with Management’s
governance process and documentation of its
assumptions;

o Assessed the basis of the floor/ minimum
rates of provisioning applied by the

Company for loan products with inadequat
historical defaults. ASL
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key andit matter

e the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
ECL provision. _

e inputs information used in the ECL
computation, on a sample basis

We assessed the disclosures included in the Ind AS
financial statements with respect to such allowance /
estimate in accordance with the requirements of Ind
AS 109 and Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Ind
AS 107).

(¢) Information Technology
The Company’s key financial accounting | General IT controls design, observation and
and reporting processes are highly | operation:

dependent on the automated controls over e Tested key controls operating over the
the Company’s information systems, such information technologyin relation to financial
that there exists a risk that gaps in the IT accounting and reporting systems, including
control environment could result in the system access and system change
financial accounting and réporting records management, program development and
being materially misstated. computer operations.
User access controls operation:

We have focused on user access s  Obtained management’s evaluation of the
management, segregation of duties and access rights granted to applications relevant
controls over system change over key to financial accounting and reporting
financial accounting and reporting systems: systems and tested resolution of a sample of

' expectations.

¢ Further, we assessed the operating
effectiveness of controls over granting,
removal and appropriateness of access
rights.
Application controls:

e We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of automated controls critical to
financial accounting and reporting.

o For any identified deficiencies, tested the
design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls and, where necessary,
extended the scope of our substantive audit
procedures

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Board of Director’s Report (Other Information) included in the Annual report, but does
not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether such Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materialiy
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding .of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from inaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Anditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identif}} and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
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misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
' including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. .

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2019 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation prectudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication,

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2017 included in these Ind AS financial statements,

" are based on the previously issued statutory fi nanma] statements prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended March 31, 2018 and
March 31, 2017 dated May 02, 2018 and May 16, 2017, respectively expressed an unimodified opinion
on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the .
Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

() We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and L.oss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according fo the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses;
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company. :

For S.R. Batlibeoi & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E360005
Chartered Accountants

@—Zﬂ é.@\m ol =
per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner
Membership Number: 103380

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2019
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Annexure 1 referred to under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (“the Company”)

(1))

(D(b)

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets were physically verified by the management in the previous years in
accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets, No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds
of immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name
of the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (¢) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not
commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of ¢lause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of
sale of any goods. Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(vii)(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory

dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. The provision relating to employee’s state insurance,
cuslom duty and excise duty are currently not applicable to the Company.

(vii}(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts

payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, and other
statutory dues applicable to it were outstandlng, at the year end, for a period of moreg
six months from the date they became payable. The provision relating to employe
insurance, custom duty and excise duty are currently not applicable to the Comp
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(vii)}(c} According to the information and explanations given to_us, there are no dues of income-

viif)

(ix)

(x)

(x)

(xif)

(xiti)

(xiv)

(xv)

tax, goods and service tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of dispute.
The provision relating to employee’s state insurance, custom duty and excise duty are
cuarrently not applicable to the Company:.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a
financial institution, bank or government or dues to debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has utilized the monies raised by way of debt Instruments in
the nature of non-convertible debentures and term loans for the purposes for which they
were raised. '

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company and
hence reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon,

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. :

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company
and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company
has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants -

oR A éD/wxm a) =
- per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner
Membership No.: 103380
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 13, 2019
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ANNEXURE 2
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

- We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bdelweiss Retail Finance
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal contro] over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issved
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects. :

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements. :
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
these Financial Statements :

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in ail material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & COQ. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants

wad =
per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner
Membership Number 163380
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2019




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Balance Sheet
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

ASSETS

Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
{c} Trade recejvables

(d) Loans

(e) Other financial assets

Non-financial assets

(a) Cumrent tax assets (net)

(b) Deferred tax assets (nef)

(¢} Property, plant and equipment

(d) Intangible assets under development
(e) Other intangible assets

(f) Other non-financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
" {a) Trade payables
(b) Debt securities
(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities)
(d) Subordinated liabilities
(e) Other financial liabilities

Non-financial liabilities

(2) Current tax liabilities (net)
(b) Provisions

(c) Other non-financial liabilities

Equity
(2) Equity share capital
(b} Other equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For 5. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

ICAI Firm Registration Number : 301003E/ E300005
Chartered A,

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner
Membership No. 103380

Place ; Mumbai
Date : May 13, 2019

As at As at Asat
Note March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
8 3,238.12 213.73 7.88
9 2,169.93 20.03 64.35
10 24771 13.42 0.17
11 18,616.42 32,672.20 14,721.07
12 90.11 70.55 51.69
24,139.35 32,989.93 14,845.16

13 64.27 31.28 0.05
14 79.87 72.27 102.28
15 49,54 50.11 9.29
6.66 6,06 1.00

16 4.95 2.66 331
17 126.72 151.12 31,63
332.02 313.50 147.56

24,471.37 33,303.43 14,992.72

18 268.37 539.32 390.80
19 4,909.92 8,040.57 3,263.31
20 12,461.50 16,934.13 7,600.41.
21 2,060.80 2,037.06 296.86
22 2.46 1,251,19 322.86
19,703.05 28,802.27 11,874.24

23 105.05 59.91 26.21
24 2.73 35.73 30.07
25 28.52 104.58 29.36
136.30 200.22 85.64

26 429.50 429.50 3259.50
27 4,202.52 3,871.44 2,703.34
4,632.02 4,300.94 3,032.84

24,471.37 33,303.43 14,992.72

Vineet Mahdjan
Chief Executive Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

o Liga

Shrikant Subbarayan

Director

DIN: 05225191

}
=

Shalinee Mimani

Director

DIN: 07404075

Kirti Sawant
Chief Financial Officer

Al
A
ot Puudn
Sudipta Majumdar
Company Secretary

Membership No. A33961



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss
(Currency : Indian ripees in millions)

Revenue from operations
Interest income

Fee and commission income
Net gain on fair value changes

Total revenue from operations
Olher income

Total revenue

Expenses

Finance costs

Impairment on financial instruments
Employee benefits expense

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before tax

Tax expenses:
Current tax

(1) Current tax

(2) Short/ (Excess) provision for earlier years
Deferred tax

(1) MAT credit entitlement

(2) Deferred tax (net)

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Retneasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each):
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even daie attached.
For 8, R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

ICAI Firm Registration Number : 3010035/ E300005
Chartered Agcountants

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner
Membership No. 103380

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 13, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Note For the period ended’
March 31, 2019

28 ‘ 3,949.82 3,421.96
29 267.42 27772
30 265.87 -
4,483.11 3,699.68
31 : 1.21 S YA ]
448432 3,71741
32 2,243.95 1,610.81
33 869.17 458.80
34 40.79 339.87
15 & 16 30.78 15.01
35 790.68 868.85
3,975.37 3,203.34
508.95 424.07
36
198.12. 12637
(11.60) -
36.3
56.40 (56.40)
(72.52) 77.27
338.55 276.83
40 1.04 - (0249
36.3 0.36 (0.08)
0.68 (0.16)
339.23 276.67
18 7.88 7.61
7.88 7.61

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retait Finance Limited

k!
Vineet MaHajan Shrikant Subbarayan Shalinee Mimani
Chief Executive Officer Director Director
DIN: 05225191 DIN: 07404075

Wl)’ . .

Jas it Mgunsdon
Kirti Sawant Sudipta Majumdar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. A33561
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Statement af Cash flows
(Currency : Indian rupecs in millions)

For the year ended For the yenr ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 20158
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 508.95 424,07
Adjustments for
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 30.78 15.01
Impaimment of financial asscts 869.17 458.30
Expense on Employee stock option scheme 0.94 0.50
Lass / (Profit) on sale of Property, plant and cquipment {0.67) 0.32
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 13,4097 898.70
Add / (Less}: Adjustments for working capital changes
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade receivables {11.35) (13.25)
Drecrease/(Increase) in Loans (net) 13,186.61 (18,409.93)
Becrease/(Increase) in Other financial assets (2,169.45) 25.46
Decreasef{Increase) in Other non financial assets 24.39 (119.49)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables (271.89) 148.52
Increase / (Decrease) in Non financial liabilitics and provisions {108.38) 80.72
Increase / {Decrease) in Other financial liability ($,320.,53; 843.16
Cash uscd in operations 10,738.57 {16,546.11)
Income taxes paid (net) {173.99) (123.34)
Net cash used in operating activities -A, 10,564.58 (18,669.95)
B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets {35.52) (55.87)
(Increase) in Intangibles under development (0.60) (5.06)
Sale of Property, plant and equipment 3.68 0.37
Nct cash generated from / (used in) investing activities - B (32.44) (60.56)
€ Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Share capital {including Securities Premium) - 1,000.00
Increase / (Decrease) in Debt Securities’ {3,006.44) 4,916.22
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings other than Debt Securitics' {4,501.31) 9,330.14
Increase / (Decrease) in Subordinate Debt - 1,690.00
Net cash generated from financing activities - C (7,507.75} 16,936.36
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 3,024.39 205.35
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year 213,73 7.88
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year 3,238.12 213.73
Operational cash flows from interest
Interest paid 2,344.31 1,477.27
Interest received 3,931.49 3,168.67
CSR contribution to Edel Give Foundation 2.50 2.50
Notes:
L. Net figures have been reporied on account of volume of transaction
2. For disclosure relating to changes in liabilities arising frem financing activities, refer note 37
As per our report of even date attached.
For 8. R, Batliboi & Co, LLP For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 301003E/ E300005 Edclweiss Retail Finance Linited
Chartered Aggountants
Lo QU\Q% ‘ ‘
oY1 W G IvS g’ -~

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner
Membership No. 103380

Yincet Matiajan Shrikant Subbarayan
Chief Executive Officer Director

DIN: 65225191

Place : Mumbai Kirfi Sawant
Date ; May 13, 2019 Chiel Financial Officer

Shalinee Mimani
Director
DIN: 07404075

N 4
Sudipta Majimdar
Company Secretary
Membership No. A33961
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

1. Corporate Information:

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (‘ERFL’ or ‘the Company”) a public limited company domiciled and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company was originally
incorporated on February 18, 1997 as “Affluent Dealcom Private Limited” which subsequently got converted
to public limited on January 1, 2014 and then the Company’s name changed to “Edelweiss Retail Finance
Limited” with effect from January 6, 2014, The Company is subsidiary of Edelcap Sccurities Limited. ERFL
is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a Systemically Important Non Deposit Accepting Non-
Banking Financial Company.

ERFL is primarily engaged in the business of providing loan against property, business loans, loan {o real estate
developers and rural finance loans.

2. Basis of preparation;

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time).

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 3 1, 2018, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013,
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP),
These financial statements for the year ended March 3 1,2019 are the first financial statements of the Company
prepared under Ind AS. Refer to note 52 for information on how the Company has adopted Ind AS.

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
such as, derivative financial instruments, and other financial instruments held for trading, which have been
measured at fair value, The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded
to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

2.1 Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division TII of the
Schedule I1I to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current) is
presented in “Note 40-Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities™.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net
basis in all of the following circumstances:

» The normal course of business
® The event of default
» The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

3. Significant accounting policies

3.1 Recognition of Interest income and Dividend income

311

312

Effective Interest Rate (EIR):

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for
all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate a shorter period to the gross carrying amount of financial instrument.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and
costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The Company recognises interest income using a rate
of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of
the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various
stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments penalfy interest
and charges. .

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than
credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

Interest Income;

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and 1s, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3°, the
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected
credit loss) of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired,
the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Penal interest income on delayed EMI / pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis.

3.2 Financial Instruments:

321

322

Date of recognition:

Financial assets and liabilities with exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e. the date the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades; purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The
Company recognises borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial labilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial ligbilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fajr value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

3.2.3 Classification and Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractnal terms, measured at either:

s Amortised cost
¢  Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCIH
* Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL)]

The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised
cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition): ‘

+ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (A

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business mode] whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual ferms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair
value of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. .

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
The Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting
date. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

3.3 Financial Assets and Liabilities:
3.3.1 Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of
financial instruments that are managed to gether, for which there evidence of a recent pattern of
short-term profit is taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the halance
sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain on fair valuesh

[
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

3.3.2

333

3.34

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amorised cost at each
reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount Or premium on
issue finds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Financial Guarantee:

Financial guarantees are contract that requires the Company to make specitied payments to
reimburse to holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate are
initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the gnarantee
or the commitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised amount and the
amount of loss allowance,

Loan Commitments:
Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Compary is required to provide

a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer over the duration of the commitment. Undrawn
loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

3.4 Reclassification of Financial assets and liabilifies

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.
The Company didn’t reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilitics in current year and previous year.

3.5 Derecognition of financial Instrurments:

3.5.1

Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the
financial asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for dereco gnition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either

* The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

¢ It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party
under pass through arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset’), but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of
the following conditions are met;

e The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with
the right to full recovery of the amount lent pIns accrued interest at market rates.

¢ The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients,

‘*‘,‘—"m—'—‘?‘_:::
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for
investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest eamed, during the period between the
collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

e The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has
not already been recorded.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification
does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original
EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has
not already been recorded.

3.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The differcnce between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow
recognised as new financial liabikity, is recognised statement of profit or loss,

3.6 Tmpairment of financial assets:

The Company records provisions based on expected credit loss model (“ECL”) on all loans, other
financial assets not measured at FVTPL together with undrawn loan commitment and financial guarantee
contracts, in this section all referred to as “Financial instrument”. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the amount and timing
of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when
contractually due.

Simplified Approach

The Company follows simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based o its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant
financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the J#€5alloWance by
applying general approach to measure ECL. A0




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

General Approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal fo 12-month expected credit losses
(12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likclihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence
of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default ocourring,.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given
defauit (LGD) (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at defanlt (EAD), for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ pross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

Company categories its financial assets as follows:

Stage 1 Assets:

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk gince
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
(resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 2 Assets:

Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition For these assets lifetime ECL (resuiting from default events possible within 12 months
from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 3 Assets:
Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans.
The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

The expected credit losses on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the loss
allowance for the financial asset.

The Company’s product offering includes a working capital facilities with a right to Company to cancel
and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit
losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the
Company’s expectations of the customer behaviour, its likelihood of default and the Company’s future
risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

3.7 Collateral Valuation;

3.8

39

3.10

3.11

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit /guarantees, real estate,
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements.
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet. However, the fair value
of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-
asscssed on a periodic basis. However, some collateral, for example, securities relating to margin
requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuping financial assets held as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are valued
using models.

Collateral Repossessed:

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal
operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to
their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original
secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held
for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at
the repossession date in, line with the Company’s policy.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets
In its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to settle
outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice,
the residential properties under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet.

Write-Offs:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Forborne and modified loan;

The Company sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as aresponse
to the borrower’s financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to otherwise enforce collection
of collateral. The Company considers a loan forborne when such concessions or modifications are
provided as a result of the borrower’s present or expected {inancial difficulties and the Company would
not have agreed to them if the borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties
include defaults on covenants, or significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance
may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the
terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated before
the modification of terms. It is the Company’s policy to monitor forborne loans to help ensure that future
payments continue to be likely to occur. Derecognition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and
Stage 3 are determined on a case-by-case basis. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan,
it is disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage 3 forborne asset, until it is collected or written off.

Determination of Fair Value;

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at cach reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on: the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

2

o

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Iiabilityb.'f"ﬁgr\
sl e ,\
~Lg,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. %-r-‘b L) :
g
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3.13

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in ifs highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use  the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level I financial instruments: .

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments:
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques
inchuding the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
nstruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected
net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrament basis and
reclassifies instroments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Operating Leases:

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, in which case lease payments are recognized based on contractual terms.
Contingent rental payable is recognized as an expense in the pericd in which it is incurred.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares,
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3.14 Retirement and other employee benefit:

3141

3.14.2

3.14.3

3.144

3.14.5

Provident fund and national pension scheme;

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which
is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity:

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
tespect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any,
is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on
independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method,

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the retarn on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Compensated Absences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Deferred Bonus:

The Company has adopted a Deferred Bonus Plan under its Deferred Variable Compensation
Plan. A pool of identified senior employees of the Company is entitled for benefits under this
plan. Such deferred cornpensation will be paid in a phased manner over a future period of time
The measurement for the same has been based on actuarial assumptions and principles.

Share-based payment arrangements:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services that
are granted by the ultimate parent company are measured by reference to the fair value of the
equity instrumenis at the grant date,

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting
period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.
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3.15 Property, plant and equipment:

3.16

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs and
majntenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier.
In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule II for
caleulating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Fumiture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office BEquipment 5 years

Computers - Servers and networks 6 years

Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a strajght-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets or the period of lease whichever is earlier.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment recognised as of April 01, 2017 (iransition date) measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life. For
transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all of its intangible
asscts recognised as of April 01, 2017 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
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3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is reflected
at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Provisions and other contingent Habilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to seftle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-ocewrrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the
Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less

Income tax expenses:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
3.20.1 Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

3.20.2 Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and Labilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in (he
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all dedunctible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. '




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrving amount of its assets and liabilities.

3203 Current and Deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the managenient to make
Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular,
information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements
are included are given below:

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

Business model assessment :

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes Jjudgement reflecting all
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evalvated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the
managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to undersiand the reason for their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.

Significant increase in credit risk:

As explained in note 45.1, ECL is measured as an aflowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. Ind AS 109 does not define what constitutes a sigpificant increase
in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company
takes info account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-Io oking information,
Refer to note 45.1 for more details.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:
Fair value of financial instruments:

The Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Judgements and
estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit «i i
value adjustments, correlation and volatility.
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4.5 Effective Interest Rate (KIR) Method:

4.6

4.7

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 3.1.1, recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life
cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income, expenses that
are integral part of the instrument

Impairment of Financial assets:

The impairment provisions for the financial assets are based on assumptions about estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows, collateral values, assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk, probability of default (PD) and Loss given default (LGD) rates. The Company uses judgements in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs for impairment calculations based on its past history,
existing market conditions and forward looking estimates at the end of each period.

The Company’s expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are output of model with number of underlying
assumptions regarding choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies Elements of the ECL models
that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

= The Company’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual grades based on
ageing.

= The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment.

» The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

* Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs Determination
of associations between macroeconommic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment
levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs.

* Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive
the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exist, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount, An asset’s
recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the

carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount,
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4.8

4.9

Provisions and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case, Where
the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made,
a contingent lability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical
evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

Provisions for Income Taxes;

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on
whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve
complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

5. Standards issued but not yet effective :

5.1

52

Ind AS 116 Leases replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019, Ind AS 116 seis out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires Jessees to account for all
leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS
17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘Tow-value’ assets and
short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a
lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (ie., the right-of-use asset).
Lessces will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. As the Company does not have any material leases,
therefore the adoption of this standard is not likely to have a material impact in its Financial Statements.

Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2018)

5.2.1 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to Ind AS 109). The
amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a prepayment
feature meets the SPPI condition, the party exercising the option may pay or receive reasonable
compensation for the prepayment irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words,
prepayment features with negative compensation do not automatically fail SPPI. These
amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019. The
application of these amendments is not likely to have a material impact on the Financial
Statements,

5.2.2 Ind AS 12 Income taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise the income tax cousequelces of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity
originally recognised the transactions that generated the distributable profits. This is the case
irrespective of whether different tax rates apply to distributed and undistributed profits. These
amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019. The
application of these amendments is not likely to have a material impact op-HER
tatements.
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5.2.5

Ind AS 23 Borrowing costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset
is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity
borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. These
amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019,

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to Ind AS 19)

The amendments clarify that the past service cost (or of the gain or loss on seitlement) is
calculated by measwing the defined benefit liability (asset) using updated assumptions and
comparing benefits offered and plan assets before and after the plan amendment (or curtailment
or settlement) but ignoring the effect of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined benefit
plan is in a surplus position). The change in the effect of the asset ceiling that may result from
the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) is determined in a second step and is
recognised in the normal manner in other comprehensive income.

An entity is also now required to use the updated assumptions from this remeasurement to
determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after the
change to the plan. In the case of the net interest, for the period post plan amendment, the net
interest is calculated by multiplying the net defined benefit liability (asset) as remeasured under
Ind AS 19 with the discount rate used in the remeasurement (also taking into account the effect
of contributions and benefit payments on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

These amendments are to be applied to plan amendments, curtailiments or settlements occurring
on or after April 01, 2019.

The application of these amendments is not likely to have a materfal impact on the Financial
Statements.

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (Appendix C of Ind AS 12)

This Appendix sets out how to determine the accounting tax position when there is uncertainty
over income tax treatments. The Appendix requires an entity to:

determine whether uncertain tax positions are assessed separately or as a group; and
assess whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment
e used, or proposed to be used, by an entity in its income tax filings:

»  Ifyes, the entity should determine its accounting tax position consistently with
the tax freatment used or planned to be used in its income tax filings.

« If no, the entity should reflect the effect of uncertainty in determining its
accounting tax position.

The Appendix is effective for annuai periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019, Entities can
apply the Appendix with either full retrospective application or modified retrospective
application without restatement of comparatives retrospectively or prospectively.

6. Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 were audited by previous auditors — Price Watethouse
& Co LLP, Chartered Accountants.

7. A Scheme of Amalgaination for merger of the Company (“Trans{eror Company™) with ECL Finstice Limited
(“Transferee Company™) and their respective sharcholders under section 230 to 232 of Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made there under has been filed with National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) on Match 26,
2019.
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Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01,2017
8 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks 3,238.12 213.73 7.88
3,238.12 213.73 7.88
9 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed Deposit with banks (including interest accrued) 2,169.93 20.03 64.35
2,168.93 20.03 64.35
9.1. Encumbrances’ on fixed deposits with bank held by the Company
: 21.29 20.03 20.00
Given as margin against the bank guarantee isszed in favour of BSE
Limited towards public issuance of non convertible debentures.
10 .Trade receivables
Trade receivables (Unsecured)
Receivables considered good - non-related party 2.04 1.28 017
Receivables considered good - related party - (Refer note 43) 22,73 12.14 -
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 0.38 - -
2515 13.42 017
Less : Allowance for expected credit losses (0.38) -
24.77 13.42 0.17
Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 20619 March 31,2018
Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach
Impairment allowance - Opening Balance - -
Add/ {less): asset originated or acquired (net) 0.38) -
Impairment atlowance - Closing Balance (0.38) -

Note: For disclosure relating to trade receivable ageing/ provision matrix, refer note 48
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11 Loans (Amortised Cost)
A. Term Loans
(i} Loans

Total (A) - Gross

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
(including on loan commitment)

Total (A) - Net

B. Term Loans

(1} Secured by tangible assets (refer note 46,1.2)

(ii} Secured by intangible assets

{(if) Covered by Bank/ Government Guarantees

(i) Unsecured

Total (B) - Gross

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
{including on loan commitment)

Total (B) - Net

C. Term Loans

C.J Loans in India

(i) Public Sectors

(ii) Others

Total (C.I) - Gross

Less: Atlowance for expected credit loss
(including on loan commitment)

Total (C.I) - Net

C.H Loans ouniside India

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
(including on loan commitment)

Total (C.II) Net

Total: (CXand CIE)

As at Asg at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Aprl 01, 2017
19,078.69 33,163.78 15,041.05
19,078.68 33,163.78 15,041.05
(462.27) (491.58) (319.98)
18,616.42 32,672.20 14,721.07
12,945.93 17,565.27 0,362.80
6,132.76 15,598.51 3,678.25
19,078.69 33,163.78 15,041.05
(462.27) {451.58) (319.98)
18,616.42 32,672.20 14,721.07
19,078.6% 33,163.78 15,041.05
19,078.69 33,163,78 15,041,035
{462.27) (491.58) (315.98)
18,616.42 32,672.20 14,721.07
18,616.42 32,672.20 14,721.07
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continted)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

11.2. Credit Quality of exposure (Loan Commitment)

(2} Grass carrying amount of loan cemmitment allocated to Stage I, Stage I and Stage 11

- Asat March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

Particulars Stage I Stage XX Stage II Total Stage Stage I Stage ITE Total Stage I Stage 11 Stage III Total
Loans (at amortised cost)
Performing

High grade 246.14 - - 246.14 863.13 - - 863.13 59.73 - - 59.73

Standard grade - - - - - - - - - - - -
Non-performing

Impaired - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total 246.14 - - 246.14 863.13 - - 863.13 59.73 - - 59.73

{b) Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL in relation to of lean commitment is, as follows:

For the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Non-credit impaired Credit impaired Total
. Stage I Stage IX Stage IIT
Particulars Gross Allowance Gross  Allowance  Gross  Allowance Gross  Allowance
carrying for carrying for carrying for carrying for
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL

As at April 01, 2017 59.73 0.20 - - - - 59.73 0.20
Trausfers: '
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) - - - - - “ - -
Transfers to lifstime ECL (Stage 2) - - - - - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL~ Credit impaired - - - - - - - -
(Stage 3)
Remeasurement of ECL arising from - - - -
transfer of stage {net)
New sanctions and (disbursement) {net) 803.40 0.32 - - - - 803.40 0.32
Closing Balance . §63.13 0.52 - - - .- 863.13 0.52
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019
Opening Balance 863.13 0.52 - - - - 863.13 0.52
Transfers:

Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) - - - - - - - -

Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) (6.20) (0.00) 6.20 0.00 - - - -

Transfers to lifetime ECL~ Credit (1.50) (0.00) - - 1.50 0.00

impaired (Stage 3) . - I
Remeasurement of ECL arising from - - - -
transfer of stage (net)
New sanctions and (disbursement) (net) {609.29) (0.28) (6.20) - {1.50) - {616.99) (0.28)

Closing Balance 246.14 0.24 - 0.00 - 0.00 246.14 0.24




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Curmrency : Indian rupees in millions)

Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2019  March 31,2018 April 01,2017
12 Other financial assets
(unsecured, comsidered good)
Security Deposits 58.43 57.10 3.67
Advances to cthers 31.62 13.32 47.89
Deposits- others 0.06 0.13 0.13
90.11 70.55 51.69
13 Current tax assefs {net)
Advance income faxes 64.27 31.28 0.05
{net of provision for tax Rs, 272,22 million, previous year Rs. 154.68 millicn
and as at April 01, 2017 Rs. 0.58 million)
64.27 31.28 0.05
14  Deferred tax assets (net}
Deferred tax assets
Loang
Provision for expected credit loss 161.51 171.78 110.74
Unamortised processing fees - EIR on lending 34.34 105.94 41.7%
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference hetween book and tax depreciation 5.39 1.07 -
Emplovee benefit obligations
Provision for compensated absences 0.23 0.58 0.34
Provision for deferred bonus - 9.96 8.81
Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.72 1.94 1.26
Unused tax credit ) :
MAT credit entitlement - 56.40 -
Others . - 8.15 17.22
202.19 355.82 180.16
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation - - 0.33
Investments and other financia] instruments
Unamortised loan origination costs - EIR on lending 62.90 204.23 63.23
Recognition of Interest Strip on assignment deals 14.17 16.83 13.08
Accrued Interest on Stage 3 receivables 7.92 10.76 107
Borrowings
Effective interest rate on financial liabilities 37.33 51.73 0.17
122.32 283.55 77.88
79.87 72.27 102,28

Note: For disclosure relating to movement in deferred tax assets / liabilities, refer note 36.3
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Nofes to the financial statements (Contirued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millons)

17 Other non-financial assefs

18

19

Input tax credit (Goods and Services Tax/ Service Tax)}
Prepaid expenses .

Advances to vendors

Advances to employees

Trade Payables

Trade payables fo non-refated parties
Trade payables to related parties - (Refer note 43)

Notes:

(i) Total outstanding dues to credifors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

(ii) Total outstarding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Debt securities (In India)
(At amortised cost)

Non-convertible redeemable debentures (Secured)

Privately placed non-convertible debentures
Publicly placed non-convertible debentures

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other ferms, refer note 50

As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01,2017
123.91 135.94 29.01
1.14 0.90 0.74
1.13 13,65 1.46
0.54 0.63 042
126.72 151.12 31.63
244.50 417.70 338.99
23.87 121.62 51,81
268.37 339.32 390.80
268.37 539,32 300.80
1,140.49 3,201.19 3,263.31
3,769.43 4,839.38 -
4,909.92 8,040.57 3,263.31




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limifed
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

20 Borrowings other than debt securities (In India)
(At amortised cost}

Term Lean (secured)
- From Banks
- From SIDBI

Note: For disclosure relating to repayiment and other terms, refer note 49

Bank overdraft (Secured)

[Secured by charge on receivables from financing business]

Bank overdraft is in nature of Comunitted Cash Credit lines repayable on
demand (Interest rate range, March-19: 8.55% - 11.00%,March-18: 8.30%
- 10.00%, April-17: 8.70% 10.65%)

Loan from related parties (Usecured)
(Repayable on demand, Interest rate payable @9.50% for March-19,
9.00% for March 18 and 12.50% for April-17)

21 Subordinated liabifities (In India)
{At amortised cost)

Non-convertible suberdinated debentures
Non-cenvertible perpetaal debentures

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other temms, refer note 51 & 52

22 Other financial liabilities

Debenture application monies received pending allotment
Bock overdrafi
Payable to employees

As at Asat As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
9,317.77 11,601.77 5,848.92
1,922.28 2,464.73 -
11,240.05 14,066.50 5,848.92
1,220.14 1,592.65 1,01R.53
1.31 1,274.98 732.96
1,221.45 2,867.63 1,751.49
12,461.50 16,934.13 7,600.4]
1,602.17 1,577.98 206.86
458.63 455.08 -
2,060.80 2,037.06 296.86
0.21 5.38 -
- 1,212.11 280.11
2.25 33.70 42,75
2.46 1,251.19 322.86




Edelweiss Retail Finanee Limited
Notes fo the financial statements (Continted)
(Currency : Indian mipees in millions}

23

24

25

Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for taxation 105.05 59.91 26.21
(net of advance tax Rs. 97.46 million, previous year Rs. 199.23 million and
as at April 01, 2017 Rs. 311.89)
105.05 58.91 26.21
Provisions
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 40) 2.73 35.73 30.07
2.73 35.73 30.07-
Other non-financial labilities
Revenue received in advance 0.01 1.84 0.46
Payable to others 3.30 6.70 3.43
Payable to related party (refer note 43) 0.94 - -
Statutory dues payable 24.27 96,04 25.47
28.52 104.58 28.36




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial sfatements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April #1, 2017
26 Equity share capital
Authorised :
5,00,00,000 (Previous year: 5,00,00,000 and and as at April 01, 2017; 500,00 500.00 500.00
5,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each
500.00 500.00 500.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
4,29,50,800 {Previous year: 4,29,50,000 and as at Aprit 91, 2017: 429.50 425.50 329.50
3,29,50,000) Equity shates of Rs, 10, fully paid-up
’ 429.50 429.50 329.50
fn) Movement in share capital - ‘
As at March 31, 20619 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Mo of shares Amount  No of shares Amount  No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,29,50,000 429,50 3,29,50,000 329.50 2,99,50,000 299.50
Shares issued during the year - - 1,03,00,000 100.00 30,00,000 30.00
Onitstanding at the end of the year 4,29 50,000 429.50 4,29,50,000 429,50 3,29,50,000 329.50

During the previous year, the Company issued 50,00,600 each fully paid-up equity shares of Rs, 10 each at a premium of Rs 5@ each for the tofal consideration of Rs. 140.00
million to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited and Edelcap Securities Limited.

(&) Termsiights attached to equity shares :

The Company has only cne class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10/~ Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, afler distribution of all preferential amouats.

{¢c) Shares held by helding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
No of shares %  No of shares %  No of shares %
Holding company

Edelcap Securities Limited 3,02,58,333 7045%  3,02,58,333 7045%  2,52,58,333 76.66%

Fellow subsidiaries
Edelweiss Finaneial Services Limited 96,91,667 22.57% 96,91,667 22.57% 46,91,667 14.24%
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 30,00,000 -6.98% 30,00,000 6.98% 30,00,000 9.10%
4.29§50.000 100.00% 4,28,50,000 100.00% 3,29,50,000 100.00%

(d} There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares! disinvestment.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes fo the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupess in millions)

27

27.1

@

(®)

{c}

()

(e

@

As at March 31,2019 - As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01,2617
Other Equity
Capital reserve B.13 8.i8 818
Securities preminm 3,112.08 3,112.08 2,212.08
Statutory reserve 260.04 192,33 128.96
Debenture redemption reserve 337.14 8.99 -
Deemed capital contribution - Equity 5.94 5.94 5.44
Retained eamnings 479.14 543.92 348.68
4,202.52 3,871.44 2,703,34

Note: For movement in Other Equity, refer 'Statement of changes in Equity'.
Nature and purpose of Reserves

Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the gains of capital nature which is not freely available for distribution.

Securities Premium
Securities premiuin isused to record the premium on issue of shares. Balance in Securities premium can be utilised only for limited puzposes such as issuance of bonus shares in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Special Reserve under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Reserve created under section 45.IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss
account and before any dividend is declared.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

The Companies Act 2013 requires companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve from annual profits until such debentures are redeemed. Commpany
being NBFC has to maintain Debenture Redemption reserve upto 25% of the value of debentuers issued {hrough public isswe. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption
reserve may not be utilised except to redeem debentures. On redemption of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debenture redemption reserve to retained earnings.

Deemed capital contribution - Equity
This reserve relates to Share options granted to eligible employees of the company by the parent company under its employee share option plan.

Retained Earnings
Retained eamings comprises of the Company’s undistributed eamings after taxes,




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes ta the finaneial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions} :

28

29

30

31

Interest ¥ncome (at amortised cosf)
Interest on Loans

Interest on deposits with bank

Other interest income

Other interest income on direct assignment

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income

Net gain on fair value changes (Realised)

Profit / (loss) on trading of securities (FVTPL)
Profit on sale of mutual fund vnits (FVTPL)
Gain on buy back of debt securities (at amortised cost)

Other income

Other non operating income

For the period ended For the period ended
March 31,2019 - March 31, 2018
3,866.44 3,389.20
62.65 1.78
0.04 0.04
20.69 30.94
3,949.82 3,421.96
267.42 27172
267.42 277.72

92.10 -

147.63 -

26.14

265.87 -
121 17.73
121 17.73




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limifed
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rpees in millions)

For the period ended For the period ended

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
32  Finance costs (at amortised cost)
Interest on borrowings 1,317.25 1,170.15
Interest on debt securities 719.19 322.63
Interest on subordinated liabilities 194.88 161.19
Other interest expense (incliding bank charges) 12.63 16.84
2,243.95 1,610.81
33  Impairment on financial instruments
Bad- debts and advances written off 898.47 287.20
Provision for expected credit loss {at amortised cost) (29.30) 171.60
(including on loan commitments)
869.17 458.80
34 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and wages 29.51 315.64
Contribution to provident and other funds 3.07 13.86
Gratuity Expense (refer note 40) b.66 1.81
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) 0.94 0.50
(Refer note below)
Staff welfare expenses 6.61 8.06
40.79 339.87
Note:

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL”) the ultimate holding Company has granted an ESOP option to acquire equity
shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to Company's employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL. has
charged the fair value of such stock options, Company has recognised the same under the employee cost.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

35

35.1.

35.2.

Other expenses

Advertisement and business promofion
Commission and brokerage
Communication

Directors' sitting fees

Legal and professional fees

Printing and stationery

Rent, Rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance

Computer expenses

Corporate social responsibility (refer note 35.2)
Rating support fees

Office expenses

Postage and courier

Goods & Service tax expenses

Stamp duty

Auditors' remuneration (refer note 35.1)
Travelling and conveyance
Miscellaneous expenses

Loan origination costs amortised

Anditors' remuneration
As a Auditor
Statutory Audit
Limited Review
Towards reimbursement of expenses

Details of CSR Expenditure:
As per the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act 2013,

Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company

Amount Spent (Paid in Cash)
(i) Constructiorn/ Acquisition of any assets
(if) on purpose other then (i) above

Amount Spent (Yet to be paid in Cash)
Construction/ Acquisition of any assets
on purpose other than (i} above

For the period ended For the period ended
March 31, 2019 31 March 2018
8.24 7.70
5.42 2.5%
11.15 8.35
0.56 (.44
175.25 204,77
7.64 4,87
19.07 40.50
0.41 2.11
21.97 6.89
2.50 2.50
0.16 0.22
83.83 49.01
2.44 1.64
52.66 69.10
1.11 14,78
1.63 1.72
5.40 20.84
2.44 7.62
388.80 422.80
790.68 868.85
0.60 0.70
0.90 0.96
0.13 0.06
1.63 1.72
10.07 7.19
2.50 2.50
2.50 2.50




34

36.1.

36.2.

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to financial statements
(Currency:Indian rupees in million)

Income tax

The components of income tax expense:

Current tax

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years

Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
MAT credit entitlement

Teotal tax charge

Current tax
Deferred tax

Reconciliation of total tax charge

Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements
Tax rate (in percentage)

Income tax expense calculated based on this tax rate
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years

Effect of income not subject to tax:
Others

Effect of non—deductible expenses:
Others

Tax charge for the year recorded in P&L

Effective tax rate

For the period ended  For the period ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
198.12 126,37
(11.60) -
(72.52) 7727
56.40 (56.40)
170.40 147.24
186.52 126.37
(16.12) 20.87
For the period ended  For the period ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
508.95 424.07
34.94% 34.94%
177.85 148.19
(11.60) -
4.15 (0.95)
170.40 147.24
33.48% 34.72%
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements

(Currency:Indian rupees in millions)

37 Cash Flow Disclosure

Change in Liabilities arising from financing acitivies

. As at March 31, Changes in Fair As at March 31,
Particulars 2018 Cash Flows valze Others 2019
Debt Securities 8,040.57 (3,006.44) - (124.21) 4,909.92
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 16,934.13 (4,501.31) - 28.68 12,461.50
Subordinated Liabilities 2,037.06 - - 23.74 2,060.80
27,011.76 (7,507.75) - (71.79) 19.432.22
. As at April 01, Changes in Fair As at March 31,
Particulars 2017 Cash Elows value Others 2018
Debt Securities 3,263.31 4916.22 - {138.96) 8,040.57
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 7,600.41 9,330.14 - 3.58 16,934.13
Subordinated Liabilities 296.86 1,690.00 - 50.20 2,037.06
11,160.58 15936.36 - (85.18) 27,011.76

Other column includes the effect of acerued but not paid interest on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees eto.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes fo financial statements
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

38.

39.

@

(b

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit atiributable fo equity shareholders of the Company

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Net Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Company - A 33855

Weighted average Number of Shares

- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 42.95
- Number of equity shares issued during the year -
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 42.95

Weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year
(based on the date of issue of shares) - B 42.95

Basic and diluted earnings per share {in rupees) (A/B) 7.88

276.83

32.85
10.00

42.95

36.39

7.61

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive/ potential equity shares issued or cutstanding as at

the year end.

Contingent Liability & Commitment:

Contingent Liability

As at March 31, 2019
Taxation matters Nil
Litigation pending against the company Nil
Commitment:

As at March 31, 2019
Estimated amount of coniracts remaining to be executed on capital account 435
Loan sanctioned pending disbursements 246.14

ARy

Wb

As at March 31, 2018
Nil
Nil

Ag at March 31, 2018
22.34
863,13




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to {he financial statements (Continued)}
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

40.

(@)

0]

0]

iy

@D

(i)

Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plan - Provident funds
In accordance with Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a

defined contribution plan, in which, both the employee and the Company contribute monithly at a determined rate. These contributions are made te a recognized provident fund
administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The employees contribute 12% of their basic salary and the Company contributes an equal amount.

The Company recognised Rs.2.72 millions (March 31, 2018 : Rs 13.05 millions) for provident fund and other contributions in the Staternent of profit and loss.

The Supreme Court has recently, delivered its ruling on the composition of basic wages for the puposes of deduction and contribution to the Employees Provident and Pension
funds. The company, in the interest of its employees, awails clarity on the complexities revolving around the application of the said order, the ambiguity refiected by the divergent
views of legal experts and the response/direction from the authorities, including on representations made by an industry association in this regard.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering atl employees. The pian pravides a lump sum payment to
vested employees at retirement or fermination of employment in accordance with the rules laid down in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The gratuity benefit is partially provided
through funded plan and annual expense is charged to the statement of profit and loss on the basis of actuarial valuation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) for pratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2019, The present value
of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valvation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financizl statements
as at balance sheet date:

Ag at Asat As at

) March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01,2017
Present value of defined benefit obligations (A) 2.06 5.56 3.63
Fair Value of plan assets (B) - - -
Present value of defined benefit obligations (A-B) 2.06 5.56 3.63
Net deficit/ (assets) are analysed as:
Liabilities 206 5.56 3.63
Assets - - -

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability;

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit {asset) liability and its components:

Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets Net defined benefit (asset) liability

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Present value of defined benefit obligations (opening) 5.56 3.63 - - 5.56 1.63
Current service cost 0.39 1.35 - - 0.39 1.35
Past service cost - 0322 - 0.22
Interest cost 0.27 0.24 - - 0.27 0.24

6.22 544 - " 622 5.44
Other comprehensive Income '
Remeasurement Actuarial loss (gain) arising from;

Experience (1.06) 0.36 - “ (1.06) 0.36
Financial assumptions 0.02 (0.12} - - 0.02 0.12)
Expected refumn from plan assets : - - - - - -
(104 024 - - 1.04) 0.24
Others
Transfer In/ (Out) (1.71) 0.02 (.71 0.02
Contributions by Employer - - - - - -
Benefits paid (1.41) (0.15) - - (1.41) 0.15)
312) (0.13}) - - (3.12) ©.13)
Closing Balance (i) + (i) + {iii) 2.06 5.55 N - 2.06 5.5
Represented by
Net defined benefit asset - -

Net defined benefit liability 2.06 5.55




Edelweiss Retail Finance Lirmnited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency ; Indian rupees in miliions)

40. Retirement and other employee benefits
Components of defined benefit plan cost:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
(i} Recognised in Statement of profit or loss
Cumrent service cost 0.39 135
Interest cost 0.27 0.24
Expected return on plan assets - -
Past service cost - (.22
0.66 1.81
(if} Recopnised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of net defined benefit Hability/(asset) (1.043 0.24
Return on plan assets excluding net interest - -
(1.04) 0.24
Total (i) + (ii) 037 2.05
Actuarial assumptions:
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount Rate 6.70% 7.00%
Salary Growth Rate T7.00% 7.00%
‘Withdrawal/Atiition Rate (based on categories) 13% to 60% 13% to 60%
Expected retim on plan Assets (p.a) T.00% 6.60%
Mortality Rate IALM 2012- IALM 2006-
14(Ultimate) 08(Ultimate)
Expected weighted average remainin working lives of employees 4 Years 3 Years
Sensitivity analysis:
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Salary Growth Rate (+/ 1%) 0.11 (0.11) 0.33 0.30)
Discount Rate (++ 1%) {0.10) 0.12 {0.30) 0.34
‘Withdrawl Rate (+/- 1%) 0.00 0.00 {0.05) (0.05)
Moertality (increase in expected lifetime by | year) Negligible change Negligible change
Mentality (increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) Negligible change Negligible change

The sensitivity is performed on the BDO at the respective valuation date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other parameters constant, There are no changes from the
previcus period to the methods and assumptions underlying the sensitivity analysis.

Asset liability comparisons:

As at Asat Asat

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Present value of DBO 2.06 556 3.63
Fair Vzlue of Plan assets - - .

Net (Assets)/Liabilitiy 2.06 5.56 3.63

{c) Compensated absences :
The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method based on actuarial valuation, The leave encashmert on

separation is paid on basic salary.
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Edelweiss Retatl Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency :Indian rupzes in millions)

42, Segment reporting

The Company's is registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non Banking Finaneial Company engaged in ths business of lending and financing . All other activities of the company
revalve around the main business, Accordingly, there is no separate reportable segment and hence no disclosure is made under Ind AS 108 - 'Operating Scgment Reporting', Fusther,
segmentation based on geography Las not been presented as the Company operates only in India,

43, Related Partly Disclosures

(i)

i) List of related parties and relativoship:

Name of related parties by whom control is exercised

Fellow Subsidiaries
{with whem transactions have taken place)

Independent Director

Key Management Personnel

Transactions with relnted partes ;

Edelcap Securities Limited - Holding Company
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited — Ultimate holding Company

ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (Formerly Edelweiss Commodities Services Ltd)
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Edelweiss Business Services Limited (Merged with Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services
Limited w.e. . ist August, 2018)

Edelweiss Finvest Pvate Limited

Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Edelweiss Agri Value Chain Limited (Merged with Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services
Limited w.e.f. 1st Aapust, 2018)

Edelweiss Broking Lirited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limitad

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Edelweiss Asset mapagement Company Limited

Ecap Equities Limited

EdeiGive Foundation

Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Edelweiss Gereral Insurance Company Limited

Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited

Edelweiss Multi Strategy Funds Management Private Limited (Merged with Edelweiss
Asset management Company Limited)

EFSL Trading Limited (Merged with Edslweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited )

Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah
M. Mitul Bhagvandas Shah

Mr. Vineet Mahajan (w.e.f. [4th December, 2018)
Mr. Arun Kumar Nayyar (up to 30t July, 2018)

. For the year ended For ihe year ended
t fT t
Nature of Transaction Related Party Nare March 31, 2019 Merch 31, 2018
Capital Account Transaction during the year:
Equity shares issued to Edeiweiss Financial Services Limited B 500,00
Edelcap Securities Limited - 500.0%
Non convertible debentares Issued to Ecap Equities Limited - 440.00
Current Account Transactions during the year:
Loans taken from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 6,354.81 5,171.46
Loans repaid to Edslweiss Rural & Comporate Services Limited 7,629.27 4,628.94
Securities Purchase Edelwsiss Rurat & Comorate Services Limited 2,100.04 -
Edelweiss Firance & Investments Limited 31546 -
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 14434 -
Amount paid {o broker for Cash segment Edclweiss Securitics Limited 1,116.30 -
Amount Received from broker for Cash segment Edelweiss Securitics Limited 1,200.50 -
Reimbursement of taxes paid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 9.99




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency :Indian rupees in millions)

43. Related Partly Disclosures

: For the year ended For the year ended
Nat {;
ature of Transaction Related Party Name March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Income . .
Rent received from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.19 0.12
ECL Finance Limited 27,76 2.34
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 011 031
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited 0.58 -
Edelweiss Agri Valae Chain Limited 0.49 -
Edelweiss Multi Strategry Funds Management Private Limited 001 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.07 602
Edebweiss Broking Limited 0.52 -
Edelweiss Asset management Company Limited 0.01 -
Cost reimbursement Received from ECL Finance Limited 25.02 1.06
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited 0.21 -
Edelweiss Agrl Value Chain Limited 0.33 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Lirnited 9.23 0.12
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.14 0.04
Edelweiss Broking Limited 033 0,01
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 005 0.02
EFSL Trading Limited - 0.01
Expenses
Tent paid Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.15 053
Ecap Equities Limited 1.79 10,04
ECL Finance Limited 0.51 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited 033 1.16
Edeiweiss Housing Finance Limited D43 1.92
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.37 331
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited - 0.59
Cost reimbursement paid to Edelweiss Finaneial Services Limited 8.86 1.11
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.13 0.33
Ecap Equities Limited 015 0.82
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.29 0.53
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited - 0,09
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.22 0.14
ECL Finance Limited 0.14 0.16¢
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited .45 2.76
Interest paid on toan from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 52.65 301.98
Interest paid on Non convertible debentures Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 91.13 31.23
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 26.70 -
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 21.88 .-
ECL Finance Limited - 1.74
Brokerage paid Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.53 .
Enterprise Service charge paid to Edelweiss Rural & Corperate Services Limited 69.58 42.43
Advisory fees paid to Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 398 135.46
Service Fee paid to Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.04 0.05
Premium Expenses Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited - 1.84
CSR Expenses Paid to EdelGive Foundation 250 2.50
Cormission and brokerage paid to Edelweiss Broking Limited 1340 37.68
ESOF costreimbursement Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 094 -
Rating support fees paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.16 0.22
Director Sitting fees Mr. Mitul Shah 0.26 0.22
Mr.Sanjay Shah .30 0,22
Remuneration paid 1o MF. Arun Kumar Nayyar 18.50 16.50
Mr. Vineet Mahajan 2.04 o




Edehveiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
(Currency :Indian rupees in millions)

43. Related Partly Disclosures

. For the year caded For the year ended
Nature of T i
ature of Transaction Related Raxty Nams March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment ECL Finance Limited 1Lle 0,62
Edelweiss Breking Limited 0.81 0.06
Edelweiss Glebal Wealth Managewsnt Limited - 0.03
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 0.02 -
Tdelweiss Custodial Services Limited 0,02 -
Edelweiss Firancial Services Limitzd 0.01 -
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 0,61 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.21 -
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limitad 001 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.08 -
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.11 -
Balances with related parties: As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Short term borrowing from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.52 1,274.98
Non convertible debentures (at face valee) held by Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 72.40 479,00
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited - 3.00
ECL Finance Limiled - 1,250.00
Interest accrusd en shore term borowing, Edelweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited 0.79 -
Interest accrued on Non convertible debentures Edelweiss Rura & Corporate Services Limited 1.82 24.07
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited - 0.03
Trade Payables Edeiweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.42 91.93
Edslweiss Financial Services Limited 0.17 0.24
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 19,42 2475
ECL Finance Limited 3.34 147
Edzlweiss Securities Limited 0.14 0.05
Edslweiss Broking Limited 0.06 0.83
Ecap Equities Limited 0.34 1.92
Edelweiss Global Wealth Menagement Limited B 0.02
QOther payable Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.04 -
Trade Receivables ECL Finance Limited 14.81 5.42
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.07 0,08
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 228 a.19
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 548 6.38
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.03 -
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited 0.02 -
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited 0.02 -
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 0.01 .
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 0.02
Nomination deposits - Payables Edelcap Securitiss Limited - 0.60
Nomination deposits - Receivables Edeleap Securitics Limited - 0.10

1 The Intra group Company loans are generally in the nature of sevolving demand loans, Loan taken/repaid from/to related parties are disclosed based on the maximum incremental

amount faken and repaid during the reporting peried.

2 Information relating to remuneration paid to key managesial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment, borus and deferred bomus which

are provided for group of employees on an overall basis, These are included on cash basis, The variable compensation included herein is on cash basis.

3 The above list contain name of orly these related paxﬁes with whom the Company has undentaken transactions for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency :Indian rupees in millions)

44

45

Operating leases

The Company has taken premises on operating lease. Terms of the lease include ferms for renewal, increase in rents in future periods and term
of cancellation. Gross rental expenses for the year ended March 31, 2019 aggregated to Rs.49.95 million (Previous year Rs. 23.64 million)
which has been included under the head Other expenses — Rent in the statement of profit and loss.

Details of future minimum lease payments for the non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Minimum lease payments for non cancellable lease
- not later than one year ' 16.98 22.24
- later than one year and not later than five years 6.67 15.69
- Iater than five years - -
23.66 41.93

Future minimum lease payments for the non-cancellable operating leases are gross of sharing of expenses with group companies.

Cost sharing

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the vltimate holding Company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like common
senior management compensation cost, Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and
its certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This cost so expended is reimbursed by the Company on the basis of
number of employees, time spent by employees of other Companies, actmal jdentifications etc. On the same lines, employees® costs expended

- (if any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the Company. Accordingly, and as identified by the

management, the expenditure beads in note 34 and 35 include reimbursements (received)/ paid and are net of reimbursements paid/{received),
Based on the management’s best estimate Rs. (60.16) millions is received during the year (Previous year Rs, 19.49 millions).
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Risk Management

Introduction and risk profile

The Company's overall objsctive is to manage its business, and the associated risks, in a manner that balances serving the interests of its-
customers and investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

The Company folows following for effective risk management:

1) Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Company;
2} Ownership of risk identification, assesstment, data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate; and
3} Finmwide structures for risk govemance

The Company ensure improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongoing employee training and development and other measures.

Risk Management Structure

The Company has a risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and confrol to effectively manage risks associated
with the various business activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by the business risk group. The Cotiipany has also established a
Risk Committee that is responsible for managing the risk arising out of various business activities.

Company's risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are able to withstand market volatility and scenarios of sharply
declining prices. The Company centralises the risk monitoring systems to monitor it's client's credit exposure which is in addition to the
meonitoring undertaken by the respective businesses.

The Company’s hoard of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framewark. The board has established the Risk Management Committes, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s
risk management policies. The Commitiee holds regular meetings and report to board on its activities.

The audit committes oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its
oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the audii committee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisal &
credit control processes, centralised operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prescribed policies and
approving loans at iransaction level as well as our risk management processes and policies allow layers of multiple checks and verifications.
Company's key business processes are regulatly monitored by the business and/or operation heads. Company's loan approval and
administration procedures, collection and enforcement procedures are designed to minimise delinguencies and maximise recoveries.

At ail levels of operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that all business divisions have
access to extensive, necessary and up—to—date information.

It is the Company’s policy that a monthly briefing is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant stakeholder on the utilisation of
market limits, proprietary investments and liquidity, plus any other risk developments.

It is the Company’s policy o ensure that risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees are expected to take
ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to, that they decide to take on, The Company’s continnous fraining and
development emphasises that employees are made aware of the Company’s risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and
responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within it's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are
important elements of employees’ annual ratings and remuneration reviews.
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46, Risk Management

(d) Types of Risks

The Company's risks are generally categorized in the following risk types:

Credit Risk ash equivalents, trade recewz?bles, financial Aging Analysis, Credit Ratings Credit lzrmfs aflci regular
assets measured at amortised cost. monitoring.
. Availability of surplus cash,
Liquidity Risk Bormrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow committed credit lines and
forecasts R e
borrowing facilities
Regular monitoring to keep
the exposure at an
Market Risk Investments in Govemnent Securiteis, Treasury Cash flow forecasting acceptable level, with
Eills, Equity Shares, Futures & Options Sensitivity analysis option of taking Interest
Rate Swaps/Futures if
deemed necessary.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

46.1. Credit Risk

(@

(b)

©

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrwment fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's loans and trade receivables. The Company has a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, 25 2 means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. In case the loans are to be restructured,
similar credit assessment process is followed by the Company.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers
the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and conntry in which customers operate.

The Company manages and centrols credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing fo accept for individual counterparties/Groups
(Single Borrowing Limit/Group Borrowing Limit) and for industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such Hmits.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company and market intelligence. Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored. The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to assess the potential loss as a result of the
risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions.

Impairment Assesment:

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss. The expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a
provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-locking information.

The expested credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probahility of default and loss given default. The Company has devised an internal model
to evaiuate the probability of default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the loans are classified into various
stages as follows:

Internal rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing
High grade 0 dpd and 1 to 30 dpd* Stage I
Standard grade 31 to 90 dpd* Stage I1
Non-performing
Individually impaired 90+ dpd* Stage I1
*Days past due

Expected Credit Loss

Credit Joss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
entity expecis to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) computation is not driven by any single
methodology, however methedology and approach used must reflect the following:

An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes

Reascnable and supportable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions;

Time value of money

While the time value of money element is currently being factored into ECL measurement while discounting cash flows by the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR), the objective of developing a macroeconomic model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs) is to address the first two
requireresnts. This has been achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk component in order to make it forward looking and probability-
weighted.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

Company considers a financial instrument defaulted, classified as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations, in all cases when the borrower
becomes 90 days past due, Classification of assets form stage 1 to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which are more than
30 days past due have been identified as accounts where significant increase in credit risk has been observed. These accounts have been classified as
Stage 2 assets. When such events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should resnlt in treating the customer as defaulted and
therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL caleulations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate,
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(d) Probability of Default

Probability of defauit (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. PD estimation process is done based on historical
intemal data available with the Company. While arriving at the PD, the Company also ensures that the factors that affects the macro economic frends
are considered to a reasonable extent, wherever necessary, Company calculates the 12 month PD by taking into account the past historical trends of the
Loans/portfolio and its credit performance. In case of assets where there is a significant increase in credit risk / credit impaired assets, lifetime PD has
been applied.

(e) Loss Given Befault (.GI)

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of
collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of money. The Loss Given Default (LGD} has been computed with workout
methodology. Along with actual recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been factored in to estimate future recoveries in LGD computation.
Workout LGD computation invelves the actual recoveries as well as future recoveries (as a part of the workout process) on a particular facility, as a
percentage of balance outstanding at the time of Default/Restructuring. The assessment of workout LGD was then performed. Principal outstanding
each loan was assessed, which went into the denominator of the LGD caleulation. LGD computation has been done for each segment and sub-segment
separately.

() Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Default (EAD). While the drawn credit line
reflects the explicit exposure for the Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD. These exposures are of the nature where
the Company provides future commitments, in addition to the current credit. Therefore, the exposure will contain both on and off balance sheet values.
The value of exposure is given by the following formula:

EAD = Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor * Undrawn Credit Line
Where,
Drawn Credit Line = Current outstanding amount
Credit Conversion Factor {CCF) = Expected future drawdown as a proportion of undrawn amount

Undrawn Credit Line = Difference between the total amount which the Company has committed and the drawn credit line While the drawn
exposure and limits for the customer are available, the modelling of CCF is required for computing the EAD

(g) Forward locking adjustments

A measure of ECL is an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible cutcomes and using reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.”

The Company has incorporated farward looking information into its measurement of ECL. The objective of developing a macroeconomic model using
exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs) is to address the requirements of unbiased, probability weighted outcomes while taking info account
current conditions as well as future economic conditions, This will be achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk compoenent in order to
make it forward ocking and probability-weighted.

Exogenous macroeconomic parameters were used as independent (30) variables to predict the dependent (Y) varizble. The Company formulates base
case view of the future direction of relevant economic variable as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenario. This involves
developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each outcome,

(h) Data sourcing

The Company ensure to obtain reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. Accordingly, macroeconomic
information was aggregated from Economie Intelligence Unit (EIU), Bloomberg, World Bank, RBI database. The EIU data has a database of around
150 macroeconomic variables as well as their forecasted values. Beyond 2022 macro-economic variables are forecasted by mean reverting the values
to their long term average. External information includes economic data and forecasts published by governmental bodies and monetary authorities in
the countvy, supranational organisations such as the OECD and the IMF, and selected private sector and academic forecasters.

S
E)
o

4
5
&
S

P
(G
. {;W
()
Ywy o




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
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(i) Probability weighted scenario creations:

To incorporate macroeconomic impact into probability-weighted, each scenario has an associated probability, These probabilities were calculated at an
overall Jevel for both Retail and Non-Retail portfolios, considering the impact of a scenario across different portfolios may differ based on endogenous
factors, the probability of a scenario wnfolding is purely exogenous, and hence should not vary.

The Company has identiffied and docuinented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments and using an
analysis of historical data, has estimated relationship between marce-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses.

The significant economic parameters scenarios used are as follows:

Key Economic Parameter Base Y +1 Base FY 42
Debt-to-GDP ratio; 18.3-18.7% 18.7-19.2%
Total factor productivity 4-4.5 44-50
Labor productivity growth: 5.1-5.5% 5.5-6.3%
Unemployment rate 8.5-8.8% 8.5-8.8%
Gross Domestic Product 7.0-7.5% 7.5-8.0%

Apart from the above significani economic parameters, the Company has also identified and used few other economic parameter to build up the
forward looking scenarios. These indicators include inflation, forecasted growth in real estate sector, expectation of industry performance, collateral
coverage movement, conduct of accounts and expectation of market liquidity.

Above explained indicators have supported in measurement of ECL, and behaviours of such indicators will suitebly support going forward in
measurement of forward looking scenarios.

Predicted relationship between the key jndicators and default and loss rates on varjous portfolios of financial assess have been developed based on
analysing historical data over the past 5 years,
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46.1.1. Awnalysis of risk concentration

The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the components of the balance sheet. Additional disclosures
for credit guality and the maximum exposure for credit risk per categories based on the Company’s infernal credit assessment
system and year-end stage classification are further disclosed in Note 11.

Industry analysis

As at March 31, 2019 Financial services Retail Construction Total
Financial asseis
Cash and cash equivalent 5,408.05 - - 5,408.05
and other bank balances
Trade receivables 2497 - - 24,77
Loans - 17,550.28 1,066.14 18,616.42
Other non financial assets 20.11 - - 90.11
5,522.93 17,550.28 1,066.14 24,139.35
Loan Commitments - 0.88 24526 246.14
Total 5,522.93 17,551.16 1,311.40 24,385.49
As at March 31, 2018 Financial services Retail Construction Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalent 233.76 - - 233.76
and other bank balances
Trade receivables 13.42 - - 13.42
Loans - 31,008.48 1,663.72 32,672.20
Other non financial assets 70.55 - - 70.55
317.73 31,008.48 1,663.72 32,989.93
Loan Commitments - 137.63 725.50 863.13
Total 317.73 31,146.11 2,389.22 33,853.06
As at April 01, 2017 Financial services Retail Construction Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 72.23 - - 72.23
and other bank baiances
Trade receivables 0.17 - - 0.17
Loans - 14,466.07 255.00 14,721.07
Other non financial assets 51.69 - - 51.69
124.10 14,466.07 255.00 14,845.17
Loan Commitments - 59.73 - 59.73
Total 124.10 14,525.80 255.00 14,904.90
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Credit Risk

Collateral held and other credit enhancements

The tables on the following pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset along with details of principal
type of collateral:

Maximum exposure to credit risk (carrying amount before ECL) Principal type of
collateral
As at Asat As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01,2017
Financial assets
Loans (at amortised cost) 12,945.93 17,565.27 9,362.80 Property; book
recelvables
Total (A) . 12,94593 17,565.27 9,362.80
I.oan commitments 246.14 863.13 59,73 Property; bock
receivables
Total (B) 246.14 863.13 59.73
Total (A + B) 13,192.07 18,428.40 9,422.53

Financial assets that are stage 3 and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses are given below:

As at March 31, 2019

Maximum exposure to Assoeciated ECL Carrying amount Fair value of

credit risk (carrying collateral
amount before ECL)

Financial assets
Loans (at amortised cost) 598.40 86.31 512.09 651.16
Total (A} 558.40 86.31 512.09 651.16
Loan commitments - - - -
Total (B} - - - -
Total (A + B) 598.40 86.31 512.09 651.16
As atMarch 31,2018
Financial assets
Loans {at amortised cost) 380.07 104.48 275.59 358.88
Total (A} 380.07 . 104.43 275.59 358.88
Loan commitnents - - - -
Total (B) - - - -
Total (A +B) ' 380.07 104.48 275.59 358.88
As at April 01, 2017
Financial assets
Loans (at amortised cost) 140.51 69.21 71.30 83.36
Total (A) 140.51 69.21 71.30 83.36

Loan commitmenis - - - -

Total (B) - . - -

Total (A +B) 140.51 69.21 71.30
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
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Credit Risk
Overview of modified and forborne loans

The table below includes assets that were modified and, therefore, treated as forbome during the year, with the related
modification gain / {loss) suffered by the Company.

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

) March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Amortised costs of financial assets modified during the year 64.94 27.96
Net modification gain / (loss) 1.09 3.97

Allowance for expected credit loss on securitisation portfolio is Rs, 1.19 millions as at March 31, 2019, Rs. 9.56 millions as
at March 31, 2018 and Rs. 35.74 millions as at April 01,2017.
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46.2.

46.2.3.

S

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Liquidity Risk

Financial assets available to support future funding

Following table sets out availability of Group financial assets to support funding

As at March 31, 2019

Cash and cash eguivalent
including bank balance

Trade receivables

Loans

Property, Plant and Equipment
Other non financial assets
Fotal assets

As at March 31, 2018

Cash and cash equivalent
including bank balance

Trade receivables

Loans

Property, Plant and Equipment
Other non financial assets
Total assets

As at April 01, 2017

Cash and cash equivalent
including bank balance

Trade receivables

Loans

Property, Plant and Equipment
Other non financial assets
Total assets

Encumbered Unencumbered
Pledge as Contractually/ Available as others * Total carrying
collateral legally restricted collateral amount
assets |
712.28 - 4,695.77 - 5,408.05
- - 24.77 - 24.77
18,616.42 - - - 18,616.42
0.37 - - - 0.37
19,329.07 - 4,720.54 - 24,049.61
Encumbered Unencumbered
Pledge as Contractually/ Auvailable as others 2 Total carrying
collateral legally restricted collateral amount
assets’
20.00 - 213.76 - 233.76
- - 13.42 - 13.42
25,461.70 - 7,210.50 - 32,672.20
0.37 - - - 0.37
2548207 - 7.437.68 - 32,919.75
Encumbered Unencumbered
Pledge as Contractually/ Available as others * Total carrying
collateral legally restricted collateral amount
assets '
64.33 - 7.90 - 72.23
. - 0.17 - 0.17
10,603.50 - 4.117.57 - 14,721.07
0.37 - - - 0.37
10,668.20 - 4,125.64 - 14,793.84

Represents assets which are not pledged and Group believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or other
Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the group would not consider readily available to
secure funding in the normal course of business
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46.3.1

Edelweiss Retzil Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk associated with the effect of changes in market factors such as interest rates, equity prices, credit spreads or implied volatilities, on the

value of assets and lizbilities held resulting in loss of fiture earnings. The objective of the Company's marke risk management is to manage and control market
tisk exposures within acceptable parameters. The Company separates its exposure to market risks between trading and non-trading portfolios.

Exposure to market risk -~ Non trading portfolios
Interest rate risk - The principal risk to which non-~trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations ja the future cash flows or fair values of
financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rete risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps 2nd by having

pre-approved limits for repricing bands,

ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits. ALCO reviews the interest rate gap staternent and the mix of ﬂoatmg and fixed rate assets and
liabilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk.

Total market risk expesure

The fair value or future cash flows of financial instraments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates. The Company classifies its
exposures to market risk into non—trading porifolios.

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31,2018 As at Apnil 01, 2017 . .

Particulars Carrying  Traded Non-traded Carrying Traded  Non-traded Carrying Traded  Non-raded P:;E??vil:;k

amount risk risk amaunt risk fisk amount rsk risk
Financial Assets
Cash and cash 5,408.05 B 5,408.05 233.76 - 233.76 72.23 - 7223  Interest rate
equivalent and other
bank balances
Loans 18,616.42 - 18,616.42 32,672.20 - 32,672.20 14,721.07 - 14,721407 Interest rate
Trade receivables 24.77 - 24.77 13.42 - 13.42 0.17 - 0.17
Other financial assets 50.11 - 940.11 70.55 - 70.55 5169 - 51.69
Total 24,133,35 - 24,130.35 32,989.93 - 32,985.93 14,845.14 - 14,845.16
Financial Liability
Debt securities 4,909.92 - 4,900.92 8,040.57 - 8,040.57 3,263.31 - 320331  Interest rate
Borrowings {other than Debt 12,461.50 - 12,461.50 16,034.13 - 16,934.13 7,600.41 - 7,600.41 Interesirate
Securities)
Sabordinated Liabilities 2,060.80 - 2,060.80 2,037.06 - 2,037.08 296.86 - 296.86 Interest rate
Trade payables 268.37 - 268.37 539.32 - 5359.32 390.80 - 390,80

Other liabilities 246 - 2.46 1,251.19 - 1,251.1% 322,86 - 322.86

Total 19,703.05 - 15,703.05 28,802.27 - 28,802.27 11,874.24 - 11,874.24




Edelweiss Retail Finanece Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

46.3. Market Risk
46.3.2 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect fature cash flows of financial instruments. The

sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the profit or loss for a year, based
on the floating rate non—trading financial assets and financial liabilitics held as at year end.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of
the Company’s statement of profit and loss and equity.

Imcrease/ Increase in profit Decrease in profit Increase in (Decrease} in
For the year ended (Decrease) in after fax after tax Equity Equity

basis points '
INR Leans
March 31, 2019 25/(25) 18.22 (18.22) E -
March 31, 2018 25/(25) 23.74 (25.74) - -
INR Borroiwngs
March 31, 2019 25/(25) (20.21) 20.21 - -

March 31, 2018 25/(25) (25.46) 25.46 - -




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analysing them by the level in the fair
value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised,

Total Carrying  Total fair

As on March 31, 2019 Amount value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent 3,238.12 3,238.12 3,238.12 - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 2,169.93 2,1659.93 2,169.93 - -
Trade Receivables 24.77 24.77 - 24.77 -
Loans 18,61642  19,138.61 - - 19,138.61
Other financial assets 90.11 90.11 - 90.11 -
Total 24.139.34  24,661.53 5,408.04 114.88  19.138.61
Financial liabilities

Trade payables 268.37 268.37 - 268.37 -
Debt securities 4,909.92 5,031.92 - 5,031.92 -
Borrowing (other than debt securities) 12,461.50 12,461.50 - 12,461,560 -
Subordinated liabilities 2,068.80 2,125.16 - 2,125.16 -
Other financial Habilities 246 2,46 - 246 -
Total " 19,703.05  19,889.41 - 19,889.41 -
Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments 246.14 246.14 - - 246.14
Total 246.14 246.14 - - 246.14
As on March 31, 2018

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalent 213.73 213.73 213.73 - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 20.03 26,03 20.03 - -
Trade Receivables 13.42 13.42 - 13.42 -
Loans 32,672.20 32,503.95 - - 32,503.95
Other financial assets 70.55 70.55 - 70.55 -
Total : 32,689.93 32,821.68 233.76 83.97  32503.95
Financial Habilities

Trade payables 339.32 539.32 - 539.32 -
Debt securities 8,040.57 8,244.80 - 8,244.80 -
Bomowing (other than debt securities) 16,934.13 16,934.13 - 16,934.13 -
Subordinated liabilities 2,037.06 2,09932 . 2,099.32 -
Other financial liabilities 1,251.19 1,251.1% - 1,251.19 -
Total 28,802.28  20.068.76 - 29,068.76 -
Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments 863.13 863.13 - - 863.13
Total 863.13 863.13 - - 863.13
Ason April 01,2017

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalent 7.88 7.88 7.88 - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 64.35 64.35 64.35 - -
Trade Receivables 0.17 0.17 - 0.17 -
Loans 14,721.07 15,118.14 - - 15,118.14
Other financial assets 51.69 51.69 - 51.69 -
Total 14,845.17 15,242.24 72.23 51.86 1511814
Financial lizbilities

Trade payables . 390.80 350.80 - 390.80 -
Debt securities ’ 3,263.31 326331 - 3,263.31 -
Bomrowing (other than debt securities) 7,600.41 7,60041 - 7,600.41 -
Subordinated Labilities 296.86 34338 - 34338 -
Other financial liabilities 322,86 322.86 - 322.86 -
Total 11,874.24 11,920.76 - 11,920.76

Off-balance sheet items

Loan comumitments 59.73 59.73 - -

Total 59.73 59.73 - -
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are
not recorded and measured at fair value in the Company's financial statements. These fair values were caleulated for
disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables and,
as such, may differ from the techniques and assumptions explained in notes.

Short term financial assets and liabilities
For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts
are a reasonable approximation of their fair value, Such instruments include: Trade receivables, trade payables and contract
liability without a specific maturity. Such amounts have been classified as Level 2 on the basis that no adjustments have
been made to the balances in the balance sheet. Cash and cash equivalent and Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents have been classified as Level 1.

Financial assets at amortised cost

The fair values financial assets measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on
contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by vields incorporating the counterparties’ credit
risk,

Issued debt
The fair value of issued debt Is estimated by a discounted cash flow model incorporating the Company's own credit risk.

Off balance-sheet

Estimated fair values of off-balance sheet positions in form of undrawn commitment are estimated using a discounted cash
flow medel based on contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the
counterparties’ credit risk.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Trade receivables

Provision matrix for Trade yeceivables

Particulars Trade receivables days past due
ECL rate
Asat Estimated total gross carrying amount at default

March 31,2019  ECL - Simplified approach
Net carrying amount

As at Estimated total gross carrying amount at default
March 31, 2018 ECL - Simplified approach

Net carrying amount
Asat Estimated total gross carrying amount at defauit

April 01,2017  ECL - Simplified approach
Net carrying amount

more than

1-90days 91-180 days 181-360 days 360 days Total
0% 0% 0% 100%
23.94 0.15 .44 0.61 2514
. " - (0.38)  (0.38)
23.94 0.15 (.44 .23 24,77
12.63 0.54 0.08 0.17 13.42
12.63 0.54 0.08 017 1342
0.17 - - - 0.17
0.17 - - - 0.17




Edetweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currer:cy :Indian rupees ir miliions)

49.  Details of the loan taken from Banks and other parties

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings
All Becured long term horrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e.loans & advances.

(a)  Details of termm loan taken from Banks
As at March 31 2019

Month of Rate of Inerest
Maturity/Repayment |8.00%-8.99% 9,00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% |Grand Totat
December-22 - 139.50 62.49 201.99
September-22 - 287.58 62.50 350.08
July-22 31.25 - - 31.25
June-22 - 287.58 62.50 350.08
May-22 - 18.75 - 18.75
April-22 3125 17.86 - 48.11
March-22 11.25 287.58 62.50 381.33
February-22 - 18.75 - - 18.75
January-22 31.25 17.86 - 49,11
December-21 31.25 287.58 62.50 381.33
November-21 - 18.75 - 18.75
October-21 3125 17.86 - 49.11
September-21 31.25 287.58 62.50 381.33
August-21 - 18.75 - 1875
July-21 31.25 17.86 - 49.11
Tune-21 31.25 287.58 62,50 381.33
May-21 - 18.75 - 18.75
April-21 31.25 17.86 - 49.11
March-21 31.25 439.36 62.50 533.11
February-21 - 18.75 - 18.75
January-21 3125 17.86 - 49,11
December-20 31.25 486.29 106.09 623.63
November-20 - 18.75 - 18.75
October-20 3125 17.86 - 49.11
September-20 72,92 587.60 109.38 765.89
August-20 - 18.75 - 18.75
July-20 3125 17.86 - 49.11
June-20 72.92 587.60 109.38 769,82
May-20 - 18,75 - 1875
April-20 £4.58 17.86 - 82.44
March-20 7292 587.60 109.38 769.89
February-20 - 18.75 - 18.75
Janaary-20 64.58 17.86 - 8244
December-19 72.92 587.60 109.38 769.89
November-19 - 18.75 - 18.75
Qctober-19 64.58 17.86 - 8244
September-19 72.92 587.60 105,38 769.85
Aupgust-19 - 18.75 - 18.75
July-1% 64.58 17.86 - 82.44
June-19 72.92 587.60 166,38 769.89
May-19 - 18.75 - 18.75
April-19 64.58 17.86 - 82.44
Total 1,229.17 6,792.09 1,262.33 9,283.58




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency :Indian rupees in millions)
49.  Details of the loan faken from Banks and other parties

Nafure of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings
All Secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e.loans & advances.

()  Petails of term loan tzken from Banks (continued)

As at March 312018
Montk of Rate of Inerest
Maturity/Repayment _ [8.00%-8.99%  [9.00%109.99%  |10.00%10 10.99% |Grand Total

December-22 257.33 - - 257.33
September-22 350.08 - - 350.08
Tuly-22 31.25 - - 31.25
June-22 350.08 - - 350.08
May-22 18.75 - - 18.75
April-22 3125 - - 3125
March-22 381.33 - - 381.33
Febmary-22 1875 - - 18.75
January-22 31.25 - - 31.25
December-21 381.33 - - 381.33
November-21 18.75 - - 18.75
October-21 3125 - - 31.25
September-21 32133 - - 381.33
Aupgust-21 1875 - - 18.75
July-21 3125 - - 31.25
Tune-21 38133 - - 381.33
May-21 18.75 - - 18.75
April-21 3125 - - 31.25
March-21 427.00 105.50 - 532.50
February-21 18.75 - - 18.75
Januvary-21 31125 - - 31.25
December-20 51525 109.40 - 624.65
MNovember-20 18.75 - - 18.75
October-20 31.25 - - 31.25
September-20 66049 102.40 - 765.89
August-20 18.75 - - 18.75
Jely-20 3125 - - 31.25
June-20 660.49 105.40 - 769.89
May-20 1875 - - 18.75
Aprl-20 64.58 - - 64.58
March-20 660.48 109.40 - 769.88
Febary-20 1875 - - 18.75
Janunary-20 6458 - - 64.58
December-19 660,49 109.40 - 769.89
November-19 1875 - - 18.75
October-19 6458 - - 64.58
September-19 660.49 109.40 - 769.89
Augast-19 i8.75 - - 18.75
Tuly-19 64.58 - - 64.58
Tune-19 66049 109.40 - 769.89
May-19 1875 - - 18.75
April-19 64.58 - - 64.58
March-19 660,50 109.40 - 768.90
Eebruary-19 18.75 - - 18.75
January-19 64.58 - - 64.58
December-18 401.04 109.40 - 510.44
November-18 1875 - - 18.75
Octobes-18 64.58 25.00 - 80.58
September-18 33125 109.40 u 440.65
Aupust-18 18.75 - - 18.75
Tuly-18 33.33 25.00 - 5833
June-18 331.25 109.40 - 440.65
April-18 33.33 25.00 - 58.33
Total 10,212.02 1,383.90 - 11,595.92




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency :Indian rupees in millions)
49.  Details of the loan taken from Banks and other parties

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrawings
All Secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e.loans & advances.

(b)  Details of term loar taken from SXDBI

As at March 31 2019

Month of Rate of Inerest
Maturity/Repayment _ |<=9.99% 110.00% t0 10.99% ]Grand Tatal
Mar-2023 - 52,50 52.50
Dec-2022% B 52.50 52.50
Sep-2022 - 52.50 52.50
Jun-2022 - 52.50 52.50
Apr-2022 89.00 - 89.00
Mar-2022 - 52.50 52.50
Jan-2022 83.00 - 83.00
Dec-2021 - 52,50 52.50
Oct-2021 83.00 - 83.00
Sep-2021 - 52.50 52.50
Jul-2021 : 83.00 - B3.00
Jun-202] - 52.50 52.50
Apr-2021 §3.00 - 83.00
Mar-2021 - 52.50 52.50
Tan-2021 83.00 - 83.00
Dec-2020 - 52,50 52.50
Oct-2020 83.00 - 83.00
Sep-2020 - 52.50 52.50
Tul-2020 83.00 - 83.00
Jun-2020 - 52.50 52.50
Apr-2020 33.00 - 83.00
Mar-2020 - 3250 52.50
Jan-2020 83.00 - 83.00
Dec-201% - 52.50 52.50
Oct-2019 83.00 - 83.00
Sep-20i9 - 52.50 52.50
Jui-2019 83.00 - 831.00
Jun-2019 - 52.50 52,50
Apr-2019 83.00 - 33.00
Total 1,085.00 840.00 1,925.00




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency :Indian rupees in millions)
49.  Details of the loan taken from Banks and other parties

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured horrowings
Al Secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivabies i.e.loans & advances.

&) Details of term loan taken from SEDBI (continned)

As at March 31 2018

Month of Rate of Inerest

Maturity/Repayment <=0.50%, 110.00% to 10.99% [ Grand Total
Mar-2023 52.50 - 52,50
Dec-2022 52.50 - 52.50
Sep-2022 52.50 - 52.50
Jun-2022 52.50 - 52.50
Apr-2022 89,00 - 8900
Mar-2G22 52.50 - 52,50
Jan-2022 33.00 - 83.00
Dec-2021 52.50 - 52,50
Oct-2021 33.00 - 83.00
Sep-2021 5250 - 52.50
Jul-2021 83.00 - 83.00
Jun-2021 52,30 - 52.50
Apr-2021 23.00 - 83.00
Mar-2021 52.50 - 52.50
Jan-2021 83.00 - 83.00
Dec-2020 5250 - 52.50
Oct-2020 33.00 - 831.00
8ep-2020 52.50 - 52.50
Tul-2020 83.00 - 83.00
Jun-2020 5250 - 52.50
Apr-20620 83.00 - 83.00
Mar-2020 52.50 - 52,50
Jan-2020 83.00 - 83.00
Dec-2019 32.50 - 52.50
Qct-2019 83.00 , - 83.00
Sep-2019 5250 - 52.50
Jul-2019 83.00 - 83.00
Tun-2019 5250 - 52.50
Apr-2019 £3.00 - 23.00
Mar-201% 5250 - 52.50
Jan-2019 83.00 - 83.00
Dec-2018 52.50 - 52.530
Oct-2018 23.00 - 83.00
Sep-2018 32.50 - 52.50
Tul-2018 33.00 - 83.00
Jun-2018 5250 - 52.50
Apr-2018 33.00 - 83.00
Total : 2,467,00 - 2,467.00




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Curency : Indian rupees in millions)

50. Repayment terms of Secured Non-convertible Debentures are as follow.

51.

52

The debentures are secured by way of parj passu charge on an iimmovable property and standard loan assets to the extent of 100% of the
outstanding amounnt of the debentures, unless otherwise stated.

As atMarch 31 2619

Description of Secured Redeemable Non

Convertible Debentures (NCD)
ERFL/Public NCD/Series VI
ERFL/Public NCD/Series V
ERFL/Public NCD/Series IV
ERFL/Public NCD/Series TII
ERFL/NCD/07Nov22
ERFL/NCD/ 29Jui2l
ERFL/Public NCD/Series II
ERFL/Public NCD/Series I

As at March 312018

Description of Secured Redeemable Non
Convertible Debeatures (NCD)
ERFL/Public NCD/Series VI
ERFL/Public NCD/Series V
ERFL/Public NCD/Series IV
ERFL/Public NCD/Series I
ERFL/NCD/QTNov22

ERFL/Public NCD/Series I
ERFL/Public NCD/Series I'
ERFL/NCD/15Aug20

Rate

9.25%
8.88%
9.00%
8.05%
8.50%
0.00%
8.75%
8.42%

Rate

9.25%
8.88%
9.00%
8.65%
8.50%
8.75%
8.42%
9.00%

Issue Date

22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018
07-Nov-2017
03-Aug-2018
22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018

Issue Date

22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018
07-Nov-2017
22-Mar-2018
22-Mar-2018
19-Aug-2015

Redemption Date

22-Mar-2028
22-Mar-2028
22-Mar-2023
22-Mar-2023
07-Nov-2022
29-Jul-2021
22-Mar-2021
22-Mar-2021

Redemption Date

22-Mar-2028
22-Mar-2028
22-Mar-2023
22-Mar-2023
07-Nov-2022
22-Mar-2021
22-Mar-2021
19-Ang-2020

No. of NCDs

4,83,173
4,09,205
6,39,638
2,34,347
1,000
100
18,79,450
1,63,967

No. of NCDs

4,33,547
4,09205
640,817
2,34,347

1,000

29,834,334

1.63,967
2,000

Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable subordinate debentures are as follow.

As at March 31 2019

ISIN number

INE528S08043
INES28508035
INES28508027
INES25808019

As at March 31 2018

ISIN number

INE528508043
INES28508035
INE328508027
INES528508019

Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable perpetual debenturss are as follow.

As at March 31 2619

ISIN number
INES28508050
INES28568068

As at March 31 2018

ISIN number
INE528508050
INE528508068

Rate
9.25%
9.25%
9.95%
0.00%

Rate -
9.25%
9.25%
9.95%
11.25%

Rate
9.75%
10.00%

Issue Date
06-Qct-2017
31-Jul-2037
10-Oct-2016
25-May-2015

Issue Date
06-0ct-2017
31-Jul-2017
10-0ct-2016

25-May-2015

Issue Date
26-Dec-2017
07-Feb-2018

Issue Date
26-Dec-2017
07-Feb-2018

Redemption Date

06-Oct-2027

31-Jul-2027

09-0ct-2026

26-May-2025

Redemption Date

06-0ct-2027
31-Jul-2627
09-Oct-2026
26-May-2025

Redemption Date

Perpetual
Perpetual

Redemption Date

No. 0f NCDs
1,000

240

120

140

No. of NCDs
1,000
244
120
140

No. of NCDs
200
250

Np. of NCDs

Amount

483.17
409.21
639,64
234.35

1,000.00
100.00

1,879.45
163.97

4,900.78

Amount

483.55
409.21
640.82
23435
1,000.00
298433
163.96
2,000.00
791622

Amount
1,004.00
240.0¢
120,08
140.00
1,500.00

Amount
1,000.00
24000
120.00
140.00
1,500.00

Amount
200,00
250,00
450.00

b ———

Amount
200.00
250.00
450.00
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(@)

(®)

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complics with externally
imposed capital requirements from its regulators and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and to maximise shareholder value. -

The Pillars of ifs policy are as follows:

a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order to minimize liquidity risk.

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its labilities issuances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the financial
strength of their balance sheets are preserved.

©) Manage financial market risks arising from Interest rate, equity prices and minimise the irpact of market volatility on earnings.

d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise sharchalder returmns while maintaining strength and flexibility of balance sheet.

This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial market conditions
and interest rates environment

Regulatory Capital

The below regulatory capital is computed in accordance with RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 - Master Direction DNBR. PD.

008/03.10.119/2016-17 September 01, 2016 (updated time to time) dated issued by Reserve Bank of India on Ind AS financial
stafernents.

As at Asat As at

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Capifal Funds

Common Equity Tier] (CET1) capital 4,861.75 4,464.46 2,732.06

Other Tier 2 capital insiruments (CET2) 1,748.32 1,762.73 354.17
Totak capital . 6,610.07 6,227.19 3,086.23
Risk weighted assets 19,513.24 33,919.04 15,235.29

CET1 Capital ratio 24.92% 13.16% 17.93%

CET2 Capital ratio 8.96% 5.20% 2.32%

Total Capital ratio 33.87% 18.36% 20.26%
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(a)

)

@©

(@)

®

First Time adoption to Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2019, are the first annual financial statements the Company has prepared
in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on March
31, 2019, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018, as described in the summary of
significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at
April 01, 2017, the Company's date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in
restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at April 01, 2017 and the financial statements as at
and for the year ended March 31, 2018.

Exemptions applied:

The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of April 01, 2017 (the transition date) by recognising all
assets and liabiljties whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted
by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement
of recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject to the certain exception and certain optional exemptions
availed by the Company as detailed below.

Share based payment;
The Company has applied the requirements of Ind AS 102 Share-based payment to equity instruments that are unvested as of the
transition to Ind AS (April 01, 2017).

Deemed cost for praperty, plant and equipment, investment property, and intangible assets:

The Company has ¢lected fo continne with the carrying value of all of its plant and equipment, and intangible assets recognised as
of April 01, 2017 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the
transition date.

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities:
The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions
occurring on or after April 01, 2017 (the transition date).

Classification and measurement of financial assets:
The Company has classified and measured the financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
transition to Ind AS,

Impairment of financial assets: .

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it
has used reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to deteomine the credit risk at the
date that financial instruments were initially recognised in order fo compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further,
the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs,
whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101,
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(f) The reconciliations of equity and total Comprehensive income in accordance with Previous GAAP to Ind AS are explained below.

@

]

(2
@

(i)

(i)

)

W

First Time adoption to Ind AS

Reconciliation of Equity as at:

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Net Worth as reported under Indian GAAP 4,346.74 3,134.93
Ind AS adjustments increasing / (decreasing) Net worth as
reported under Indian GAAP:
Effective interest rate on financial assets and liabilities (net) 178.85 3.58
Expected credif loss provision (314.75) (223.84)
Fair valuation of employee stock options 0.24 -
Interest spread on assignment transactions 51.28 37.81
Others - -
Total effect of transition to Ind AS {84.38) (182.45)
Tax on Above 38.58 80.36
Equity as per Ind AS 4,300.54 3,032.84
Reconciliation of total comprehensive income
. For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018
Net profit after tax as reported under Indian GAAP 316.86
Ind AS adjustments increasing / (decreasing) net profit as
reported under Indian GAAP:
Effective interest rate on financial assets and Habilities (net) 21.86
Expected credit loss provision (90.92)
Fair valuation of employee stock options (0.26)
Interest spread on assignment transactions 13.47
Tax Inipact on above Transactions 15.81
Net profit as per Ind AS (40.04)
Other Comprehensive Income afer tax as per Ind AS (0.15}
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS 276.67

Reference notes to reconciliation of Equity and profit & Loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and fosses and the refern on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit lability are recognised in other comprehensive income. Under the previous GAAP,

these remeasurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the year

Share Based Payment

Under the previous GAAP, the cost of ESOPs were recognised using the intrinsic value methed. Under Ind AS, the cost of equity
settled share-based plan is recognised based on the fair value of the options as at the grant date.

Trade receivables /Loans:

Under Previous GAAP the Company has created provision for impairment of receivables and Loans based on incurred losses

where as under Ind AS, Impairment allowance has been determined based on Expected eredit loss model (ECL).

EIR

Under previous GAAP, fransaction cost on horrowings were charged upfront to Statement of profit and Ioss while under Ind AS,
such cost are included in initial recognition amount of financial liability and is amortised over the tenure of the borrowings,

Reclassification of provisions for standard /non-performing assets (NPA)
Under Indian GA AP provision for NPA and standard asset were presented under provisions. However, under Ind AS financial
asscfs‘me‘asnp at amortised cost {(mainly loans) are presented net of provision for expected credit losses. Consequently, the

f)&‘ v rz{g’i‘cc assified the Indian GAAP provisions for standard assets / NPA's amounting to TNR 96.12 millions and INR.
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()  Foreign currency
The Company has not undertaken any foreign currency transaction during the year ended March 31, 2019 (Previous year: Rs Nil}.

() Investments.

As at Ag at

Particulars March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Value of Investments

6] Gross value of Investments
(a) In India Nil Nil
(b) Outside India Nil Nil
(it) Provisions for Depreciation
{(a) Int India Nil Nil
{b) Outside India Nil "Nil
(iii) Net value of Investmenis
(a) In India Nil Nil
(b) Outside India Nil Nil
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation
(@ Opening balance ’ Nil Nil
{ii} Add: Provisions made during the year Nit Nil
(iif) Less: Write-off / Written-bank of excess provisions Nil Nil
during the year
{iv) Closing balance Nil Nil

(ili) Derivatives
(a) Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

S.No. Particulars Asat Asat

. March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements Nil Nil

(i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed Nil Nil
to fulfill their obligations under the agreements

{iii) Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon Nil Nil

entering into swaps
{iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps § Nil Nil
v} The fair value of the swap book @ Nil Nil

Note: Nature and terms of the swaps including
information on credit and market risk and the
accounting policies adopted for recording the swaps
should also be disclosed.

3 Examples of concentration could be exposures to
particular indusiries or swaps with highly geared
companies.

@ If the swaps are linked to specific assets, liabilities,
or commitments, the fair value would be the estimated
amount that the applicable NBFC would receive or pay
to terminate the swap agreements as on the balance
sheet date,

(b) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives

S.No. Particulars Amount

[6)] Notional ptincipal amount of exchange traded IR
derivatives undertaken during the year (instrumentwise)

a) Nil
G5} Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR
derivatives outstanding as on March 31, 2019
(instrument-wise)

a) ' Nil
(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR
derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective"
(instrument-wise)

a) Nil
{iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange ftraded IR
derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective"
(instrument-wise)

a) Nil
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() Qualitative Disclosures
The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has
reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law / accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts
has been made in the books of account. The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts during the year. (Previous year Rs. Nil)
(d) Quantitative Disclosures
Sr. No Particular Current Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives
@ Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) Nil Nil
For hedging Nil Nil
(i Marked to Market Positions [1]
a) Asset (+) Nil Nit
b) Liability {-) Nil Nil
(fif} Credit Exposure [2] Nil Nil
(iv) Usnhedged Exposures Nil Nil
(v) Asset liability management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
As at March 31, 2019
Over 3
. Upto 30/31 Over 1 Over 2 months Over & Over 1 year upto | Over 3 years Over 5
Particulars menth upte { menths upto months Total
days upto 6 3 years upto 5 years years
2 months 3 months upto 1 year
months
Deposits - - - - - - - - -
Advances 1,258.08 676.11 75048 | 1,924.88 | 3,391.69 3,304.94 1,852.43 5,920.08 [ 19,078.69
Investments - - - - - - - - -
Borrowings 209.02 25.01 82239 | 1,02135| 3,341.88 8,028.67 3,175.41 2,808.49 | 19,432.22
Foreign
Currency Assets - - - - - - - -
Foreign
Currency Assets - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2018
Over | month{ Over2 Qver 3 Qver 6
Particulars Upto 3031 upto2  [months upto 3| months upto|months upto Over 1 yearupto 3 | Over 3 years upto Over 5 years Total
days Years 5 years
months months 6 months 1 year
Deposits - - - - - - - - -
Advances 1,345.81 1,116.71 1,279.63 3,379.66 | 6,390.74 9,203.70 2,774.25 7,669.28 | 33,163.78
Investments - - - - - - - - -
Borrowings 951.89 255.00 694.16 | 230772 3,933.53 10,596.24 5,527.56 2,745.66 | 27,011.76
Foreign Currency -
Assets - - - - - - - -
Foreign Currency -
Assets - - - - - - - .
In computing the above information, certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the management which are consistent with the
guidelines provided by the Reserve Bank of India.
(v)  Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)

5. No. Particular As at As at
March 31, 2019] March 31, 2018
b)) CRAR (%) 33.87% 18.36%
i)  CRAR- Tier! capital (%) 24.92%, 13.16%
iif) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 8.96% 5.20%
iv) Subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital - 1,240.00
v) Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt 450.00
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(vi)

(a)

Regulatory Disclosures
Direct assignment & Securitisation

Disclosures in the niotes to the accounts in respect of securitisation transactions as required under revised guidelines on
securitization transactions issued by RBI vide circular no.DNBS, PD.N0.301/3.10.01/2012-13 dated August 21, 2012

S. No.

Particular

Asat
March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

As at

—

No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions
Total amount of securitised assefs as per books of the SPVs
sponsored by the NBFC
Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with
MRR as on the date of balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First loss
- Others
b) On-balance sheet exposures
- First loss
- Others
Exposures of assignment fransactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i} Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others
ii) Exposure 1o third party securitisations
- First loss
- Others
b) Oun-balance sheet exposures
i) Expostre to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others
ii} Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
~ Others

3
68.22

243.30

243.30

3

592.29

319.78

319.78
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(b) Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect of assignment transactions

8. No. Particular As at As at
March 3%, 2019] March 31,2018
No. of assignment transactions 6 5
Total amount of assigned assets as per books 950.17 920.60
Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with 105.57 102.14
MRR as on the date of balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First loss - -
- Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures
- First loss - -
- Others 105.57 102.14
Exposures of assignment transactions other than MRR - -
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss - -
~ Others - -
(&) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
S. No. Particular For thz :;:; For the year ended
March 31,2019{ Merch 31,2018
i) No. of accounts Nil Nil
i) Aggregate value {net of provisions) of accounts sold to Nil Nit
iii) Aggregate consideration Nil Nil
iv) Additional consideration realized in Nil Nil
v) Agprepate gain / Joss over net book value Nil Nil
(d)} Details of Assignment transactions undertaken
5. No. Particular For th: :::; For the year ended
March 31,2019 rch 31,2018
iy} No. of aceounts 39.00 1,784.00
it} Aggregate valee (net of provisions) of accounts sold to 442.06 509.35
SC/RC
i) Aggregate consideration 442.06 510.08
iv) Additional consideration realized in - -
respect of accounts transferred in earlier
v) Agpregate gain / loss over net book value 20.69 31.67
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(vii)

(viif)

Regulatory Disclosuxes

Details of non-performing financials assets purchased / sold

During the year the Company has neither purchased nor sold any non-performing financials assets. (Previous year : Nib

A. Details of Non perfonming financial agsets purchased:

S. .
No. Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended|
March 31, 2018

{a) No. of accounts purchased during the year

(b) Aggregate cutstanding

() Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year
(b) Aggrepate outstanding

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

B. Details of Non performing financial assets Sold:

S. -
Particulars
No. articu

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

(a) No. of accounts sold
{b) Aggregate ouistanding
(c) _Aggregate consideration received

Nil

Nil

Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect & exposure te capital market

a) Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indivect

8.
No. Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

Asat
March 31, 2018

A. Direct exposure
(D Residential mortgages -

occupied by the borrower or that is rented

(ii) Commercial real estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates {office buitdings,

buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, indusitial or warehouse
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc).
(iif} Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities {MBS) and other securitised
- Residential
- Commercial real estate

B. Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB})
and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

Lending fully secured by mortgapes on residential property that is or will be|

retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential

4,442.93

8,606.20

6,025.97

12,290.94
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(ix)

)

(xi)

Cxii)

Regulatory Disclosures
b) Exposure to capital market

S.
No.

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

b

if)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues

viii) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures
and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not
exclusively invested in corporate debt

advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean
basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented|
mutuai funds

advances for amy other purposes whete shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual finds are taken as
primary security

advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral
security of shares or convertible bonds er convertible debentures or units of]
equity oriented mutual fimds i.e. where the primary security other than shares
/ convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual
funds 'does not fully cover the advances

secured and unsecured advances fo stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers

loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds /
debentures or other securitics or on clean basis for meeting promoter's
contribution to the equity of mew companies in anticipation of raising
resources

74.83

Movements in non performing advances (Stage IIT lpans):
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of gross Noa-performing assets (NPAs), Net
NPAs and provisions.

> Particulars As at Asat
No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
i)  NetNPAs to net advances (%) 2.68% 0.83%
i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 380.07 "140.51
b) Additions during the year 417.31 30924
©) Reductions during the year {198.98) (69.68)
d) Closing balance 598.40 380.07
iii) Movement of net NPA
a) Opening balance 275,59 7130
b) Additions during the year 354,08 223.18
c) Reductions during the year (117.58) (18.88)
d) Closing balance 512,09 275.59
iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
a) Opening balance 104.48 69.21
b) Additions during the year 63.23 86.06
¢) Reductions during the vear (81.40) (50.80)
d) Closing balance 86.31 104.48

Details of single borvower limit and grong borrower Emit exceeded by the Commpany:

During the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, the Comp:

limits prescribed by the RBI,

Unsecured Advances
The company has not taken any charges over the rights,licences,authorisation etc against unsecured loan
previous year,

Fraud Reporting

There were no igstanees.of fraud identified and reported during the year (Previous Year Nil) as required in terms of Chapte
of frauds in

R RESeryeBank) Directions, 2016
%

any’s credit exposure 10 single borrowers and group borrowers were within the

given to bomowers in the current year and
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(xiil) Remuneration of Directors
The company has not entered into any transaction with non-executive direciors during the year (Previous Year Rs. Nil} except disclosure made in table
below:
Details of transaction with non executives directors
Name of Directors Nature of transaction For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
vir. Mitul Shah Sitting fees 0.26 0.22
M. Sanjay Shah Sitting fees 0.30 0.22
(v}  Net profit or loss for the period s Prior period items and changes in accounting policy
There are no prior items (previaus year Rs, Nil), For changes in acconting policies refer note 3 and note 54 for First Time adoption to Ind AS"
(xv)  Details of 'provisions and contingencies'
Break up of 'provisions and pontingencies' shown under the head For the year ended|  For the year ended
expenditure March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
i) Provisions for depreciation on investment - -
i)  Provision towards NPA (Stage III Joans) 18.17) 3527
iii} Provision made towards income tax 186.52 126,37
iv)  Provision for Standard Ioans (Stage 1 & 1l Joans) (11.14) 136.33
(xvi)  Draw down from Reserves
The Company has not made any draw down from reserve during cuirent year and previous year,
(xvii) Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs
A) Concentration of Deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs) As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Total Deposits to twenty largest depositors NA Na
% of Deposits of twenty largest depasitors fo total Deposit taking NBFC NA NA
B) Concentration of advances As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 2,434.42 2,728.89
% of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances 12.84% 8.31%
B) Concentration of exposures (includes Off balance sheet exposure)
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers 2,568.56 3,209.44
% of exposures to twenty larzest borrowers / customers to total Exposure 13.38% 9.52%
C) Concentration of NPAs
Total exposures to top four NPAs 127.10 9729

D} Sector-wise NPAs % of NPAS to total advances in that
sector
1 Agriculture & allied activities 2.22% 0.00%
2 MSME 0.00% 0.00%
3 Comorate borrowers 3.85% 1.26%
4 Services 2.47% 1.30%
5 Unsecured personal loans 0.00% 0.00%
6 Auto loans 0.00% 0.00%
7 _Other personal loans 3.03% 1.13%
(xviti) Customer complaints

S. Particulars For the year ended|  For the year ended

No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(@) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 13 -

(b} No. of complaints received during the year 157 70

(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 157 57

(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

13
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(ix)  Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies
As at March 31, 2019
Instrument category CRISIL SMERA ICRA CARE Brickworks Brickworks Acuite
i) Long term instruments
CRISIL NA [ICRA] AA CARE AA BWR AA+ and BWR AA Acuite AA+-
Rating AA/Stable BWR AA Stable
Amount 18,000.00 NA 41,500.00 12,250.00 4,500.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
ii) Shortterm instruments
Rating CRISIL A+ NA [ICRA] A1+ CAERE Al+ NA NA NA
Amount 5,000.00 NA 6,000.00 5,000.00 NA NA NA
As at March 31, 2018
Instrument category CRISIL SMERA ICRA CARE Brickworks Brickworks
i) Long term instruments
CRISIL CRISIL [ICRA] AA CARE AA BWR AA+ BWRAA
Rating AA/Stable  AAJStable
Amount 18,006.00 1,000.00 44,500.00 12,500.00 4,500.00 1,000.00
if) Short term instruments
Rating CRISH A+ NA [ICRAJAl+  CARE Al+ NA NA
Amount 5000 NA 6,000.00 5,000.00 NA NA
(xx) Disclosure on perpetual debt
. For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2019|  March 31,2018
Amount of funds raised through Perpetual debt instrument - 450.00
. As at As at]
Particulars March31,2019)  March 312019
Principal amount outstanding as at year end. 450.00 450.00
Percentage of the amount of Perpetual debt of the amount of its Tier 1 Capital
9.26% 10.08%
Unpaid interest on Perpetual debt - .
(o) There are no amount due and cutstanding to be credited to investor education & protection Fund as at March 31, 2019 and at at March 31,2018
(xxii) Off balane sheet SPV sponsored -NIL (Previous year NIL)
{xxdii) Micre, Sinall and Medium Enterprises {MSME) sector - Restructuring of Advances
The Company has restructured 10 MSME horrower accounts amounting to Rs. 56.28 millions during the cucrent year under extant RBI guideline under reference
RBI/2018-19/100 DBR.No.BP.BC.18/21.04.048/2018-19 dated January 01, 2019,
(xxiv) Registration obtained from other financial sectox regulators - Nil (Previous Year - Nil)
(xxv) Detail of financing parents company products -Nil (Previous Year - Nil)
(xxvi) Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBY and other regulators - Nil (Previous Year - Nif)
(xxvii) Ownership Overseas Assets (for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)
There are no overseas assets owned by the company (Previous year Nil)
Cxoxviii) The Company has not postponed revenue recognition on any item during the current year and previous year.
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Edelwciss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency :Indian rupees in millions)

55 Regulatory Disclosures

(xxx) Note to the balance sheet of & non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company as required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direciion- Non-Banking
Financial Company- Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

Liabilities side:

Particulars

Amount oufstanding

Amonnt overdue

As at|

As at,

Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

As at

March 31, 2019) March 31, 2018

As at|

a) Debentures:
(other than those falling within the meaning of Public deposit)
(i) Secured
(i) Unsecured
b} Deferred credits
c) Term loans
d) TInter-corporate Joans and berrowing
¢€) Commercial paper
f) Other loans
1) Loan from related parties
2) Bank overdraft
(* Please see note 1 below)

Assets side:

2} Break up of kans and advances including bills receivables
(other than these included in (3) below)

a) Secured

b} Unsecured

a) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(i} Financial lease
(i) Operating lease

b) Stock o hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(i} Assets on hire
(i) Repossessed assets

c} Other loans counting towards asset financing Company activities
(1) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(i) Other loans

1) Loans and advances availed by NBFC inclusive of interest acorusd thereon but not paid

4,909.92
2,060.80
11,240,05

131
1,220.14

12,945.93
6,132.76

3) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and ather assets counting towards AFC activities

8,040.57
2,037.06
14,066.50

1,274.98
1,592.65

17,565.27
15,598.51




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statcroents (Continued}
{Currency :Indian rupees in milfions)

55 Regulatory Disclesures

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company as required in terms of patagraph 18 of Master Direction- Non-Banking
Financial Company- Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Depesit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 20186,

Asat Asat
March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
4) Break up of investments
Current investments:
4) Quoted:

()  Shares: Equity - -
Preference - -

(i)} Debentures and bands - -
@i} Unils of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -
(v} Others - -

b) Unguoted:

()  Shares: Equity - -
Preference - -

(i} Debentures and bonds - -
(iii)  Units of mutual funds . -
(iv} Govemment securities - -
(v} Others (pass through certificates) - -

Long-term investments {net of provision)

a) Quoted:
()  Shares: Equity - -
Preference - -
(i) Debentures and bonds - -
(iii} Units of mutual funds - -
{iv) Government secutities - -
(v) Others - _

b} Unguoted:

(1)  Shares: Equity - -
Preference _ .
(ii) Debentures and bonds - -
(iii} Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Govermnment securities - -
(v} Others - -
- Pass through certificates - -
- Security receipts - .

5) Bomrower group-wisc classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above
Amount net of provisions

Particulars Secured Unsecured Total
Asat Asat As at Asat As at As at]
March 31,2019  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
1. Related parties**
(a) Subsidiarjes - - - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - - - - - -
{c) Other related partics - - - - - -
2. Other than related parties 12,945,93 17,565.27 6,132.76 15,598.51 19,078.69 33,163.78
TOTAL 12,945.93 17,565.27 6,132.76 15,598.51 19,078.69 33,163.78
6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)
Partieulars Market value/break up or fair valne Book value
or NAV {net of provisions)
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2619 | March 31,2018 March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
1} Related parties .
{a) Subsidiaries - - B -

{b) Companies in the same group - - - R
(c) Other related parties - - - N
2} Other than related partics - - - L -

TOTAL - - . _[

7) Other information

. As at Asat
Particulars March 31,2019] March 31, 2018
a) Gross non-performing assets

13 Related parties - -

2} Other than related parties 598.40 380.07

b) Net non-performing assets
1) Related parties

2} Other than related parties 512.09

c} Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

=) i -
Note : As defined in paragraph 2{1)(xii} of the Non—Bank'ir'ig;{gihani_a_l‘C’olfﬂfpriéy ‘Acceptance of public deposits{Reserve bank) Direction,1998,

L Ay
v




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statemenis (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in miilions)

56 Other Disclosures

® Details of dues to micre enterprise and small enterprise

Trade payables includes Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. Nil) payable to “suppliers”

registered under the micro, small and medium enterprises

Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company during the year and previous year to “suppliers” registered under
this Act. The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under

the said Act.

Gi)

Disclosure under regulation 53(f) of SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Particulars

Loans to advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries
Loans to advances in the nature of loans to associates
Loans to advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested

Investment by the lonee in the share of parents company and subsidiary company, when the
company has made a loans & advances in the nature of loans

As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(i)
2018.

Initial Disclosure to be made by an entity identified as a Large Corporate

Disclosure Large Corporate as per the applicability criteria given under the SEBI circular SEBIE O/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26,

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1 Name of the company EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED
2 CIN U67120MH1997PLC285490
' . 3 Outstanding botrowing of company as on March 31, 2019 19,432.22
4 Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY along with name of the Credit Rating  As per Table 1 below
Agency
5 Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid, in case of shortfull in the BSE LIMITED
required borrowing under the framework

Table 1

Product Credit Rating Name of Rating Agency

Bank Borrowings ICRA AA ICRA Limited

Bank Borrowings CRISIL AA/Stable CRISIL

Commercial Papers CARE Al+ CARE Limited

Conunercial Papers CRISIL Al+ CRISIL

Commercial Papers ICRA A1+ ICRA Limited

Long Term Sub-Debt CARE AA CARE Limited

Long Term Sub-Debt CRISIL AA/Stable CRISIL

Long Term Sub-Debst ICRA AA ICRA Limited

Long Term-NCD BWR AA+ Brickwork Ratings

Perpetual - Debt ACUITE AA/Stable Acuite Ratings & Research Limited

Perpetual - Debt BWR AA Brickwork Ratings

Short Term NCD ICRA Al+ ICRA Limited

A per our report of even date attached,

For §.R.Batliboi & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 301003E/E300005

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Pariner
Membership No: 103380

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 13, 2019

fn

Vineet Mahjan
Chief Executive Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Shrikant Subbarayan Shalinee Mimani
Director Director
DIN: 05225191 DIN: 07404075

W ) -
e
Kirti Sawant Sudipta Majumdar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No, A33961




